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Financial performance B8

Global distribution network 2k $448948

In HK$mn In HK$mn 30 June 2009 30 June 2008
BEEET BEEET —EBAEF —TTN\F Change
Year ended Year ended AAZ=+H ~NA=TH [t
30 June 2009 30 June 2008
BE-2EhE BE-TT)\F Change Hong Kong &7
NAS+HALERE XE=RILEE s Directly managed stores 41 41 0
EREERER
Revenue Mz 2,254 2,317 ¥ 3% - -
Gross profit £ 1,113 1,170 V5% Mainland China & Xk
Profit from operating activities 4 i3 ) 7 60 90 ¥ 33% D”fcfly managed stores 362 304 158
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders E?ﬁﬁﬁg B
A NPT 50 64 v21% Franchised stores 216 188 +28
Basic EPS (in HK cents) SREAZF (#1l) 3.16 4.01 v 21% SRR
Sub-total 578 492 86
Interim dividend per share (in HK cent) SRk EIILSE (; 1.0 - N/A iR it
Final dividend per share (in HK cent) &A% EAR% S, ( 1.0 1.0 - : n
Payout ratio (%) JESLLE (%) 63% 25% 1 38% pts EEHE Taiwan &8
Directly managed stores 84 89 v5
Gross margin (%) EFI% (%) 49% 50% V1% pt [EEDE HETEEMN
Operating margin (%) &i&&F% (%) 3% 4% V1% pt EEHE _
Net margin (%) iFl (%) 2% 3% ¥ 1% pt HEH % Singapore 0
Directly managed stores 31 29 12
EBITDA R&t#8 - B8 - 18 REEHAI AT 135 163 V17% HEERIEH
in (9 5 [SINE 3=Ri=IN 3 PR R R (9%, [ [ 0, S
EBITDA margin (%) AR&HFIE - B8 - & REHRTAFIE (%) 6% 7% V1% pt EEHE Malaysia BAED
Capital expenditure EAFx% 88 85 4% Directly managed stores 20 14 16
BEEERER
i ial i i “— OF B 3K o 438 Other countries HftE=R
Key flﬂanC|a| indicators EKEX@’%?E T? Export franchised stores 424 391 133
30 June 2009 30 June 2008 R T A R
—EEAF —TTNF Change Total 2
A= A= i Directly managed stores 538 477 161
Inventory turnover* (days) 17 & @& 5> (X) 45 36 19 days & HEERER
Inventory level (in HK$mn) 7&K (B EET) 281 230 222% Franchised stores 640 579 161
Return on equity (%) FREREZREIHRE (%) 8% 10% $2% pts A5 D26 R &I
Current ratio (times) RENLLE (%) 2.27 2.61 V13%
Net cash® (in HK$mn) & FET (B EET) 265 310 $15% 1.178 1.056 22
Total liabilities to equity ratio (%) %8 EHREERLLE (%) 50% 39% M1% pts EED R

* Inventory held at year end divided by annualised revenue times 365 days 4 # B 2 17 5k AF (L a5 365K
T Time deposits, cash and bank balances less bank loans 5 177 5F13 & K 4R 1745 80 IRTT BV 30

N

Revenue by geographical market #zl& i35 %8 2 Wzt
For the year ended 30 June 2009 #Z =T AFA=+HILFE

Mainland China /B KR
21% (19%)

Hong Kong &/#
56% (56%)

Taiwan A&
12% (14%)

Singapore ¥ i3
9% (10%)

Malaysia 5 s A g5
2% (1%)

() Figures for the year ended 30 June 2008 are shown in brackets HZE —TZ \FXA=+HILFEZHFUERER



Global distribution network

B HA L
.578 (492)

directly managed and franchised stores in
Mainland China
AR B AER RS R E 54

.424 (391)

export franchised stores
WO R

.1 76 (173)

directly managed stores in Hong Kong,
Taiwan, Singapore and Malaysia
RREE - A8 IR ERADHEREIRIER

1178 (056

stores in about 33 countries
JERRLARAI33 @R R

Dominican Republic %8 fE fn£ A El

@ 1(1) Russia AR
@ 6(6) Poland #H

362 (304) Directly managed & # &2
Mongolia %% 1 (1) @ 216 (188) Franchised %48 %
@ Mainland China B AR
@ 5 (5) South Korea F#s
@ 2(2) Nepal Bam@

Romania ZFEZ 2(2) @
Malta St 8 (8) @
Cyprus =% 909) @
Middle East* s3a* 200 (174) @
Morocco %3 5(5) @ Egypt 5% 43) @
Myanmar &t 11(5) @ ©® 34(39) Taiwan &
Thailand %28 @ 41 (41) Hong Kong &%
India £15Z 48 55)@ 72 (63) @ @ 13 (14) Philippines &%
405)@ @ 10 (8)Vietnam i
Malaysia %735 20 (14) @
@ 3129 Singapore #i0#
Indonesia £12 22 (24) @

Reunion Islands 22 S  1(1) @

* The Middle East includes UAE, Qatar, Lebanon, Bahrain, Kuwait, Iran, Jordan, Syria, Saudi Arabia and Oman
PREEMAAHSERE - FEE  REH - B4 RES  F8 - M8 - BFE - ARAAAKREmE

() Figures at 30 June 2008 are shown in brackets

REZZZENFRA=ZTAZHFTUERRR

Financial and operational highlights B K & EHE

Regional retail performance indicators ih[@EZ & & RIIRIEZ

Same-store sales growth (%)*
FEHEEER (%)

Net sales per sq.ft. (in HK$)
BYHWEHER (B%)

Floor area (sq. ft.)
BEER (FAR)

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2009 30 June 2009 30 June 2009

BE-EETNF BE-ZENF —EEAF

NA=ZTHLEE RNA=THLEE ANA=t+AH
Hong Kong &% -2% 6% 5,500 5,700 v 4% 143,100 148,100 v 3%
Mainland China = B AR 5% 0% 1,100 1,200 v 8% 373,500 293,600 t27%
Taiwan & & -12% 5% 2,200 2,500 v 12% 119,800 129,400 ¥ 7%
Singapore #Tin% -8% 4% 5,800 6,200 ¥ 6% 35,400 33,800 5%
Malaysia 52K 7G58 1% 11% 1,500 1,800 v 17% 28,700 20,300 * 41%
Total &# -3% 5% 2,500 2,800 v 1% 700,500 625,200 *12%

* Same-store sales growth is the comparison of sales of the same stores having full month operations in comparable periods
FEHERIERAERERNCBHRATE A0 2 HERLER



CORPORATE PROFILE e

Our vision IS

to be the top-of-mind

brand leader

RAENES - BEEENSRE TiEamnE

Bossini International Holdings Limited (the “Company”; stock code on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“stock code”): 592) and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Bossini”) is a renowned apparel brand
owner, retailer and franchiser in the region.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Bossini launched its first retail store in 1987. Over the past two decades, it
rapidly established an extensive international operating platform and distribution network that extended
to a total of 1,178 stores worldwide. Among these, the Group operated 538 directly managed stores in
Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan, Singapore and Malaysia. The Group also further strengthened its
brand presence in Mainland China through the establishment of 216 franchised stores. As for other overseas
markets, the Group cooperated with its business partners to establish a total of 424 export franchised stores
in about 28 countries, spanning from Southeast Asia, the Middle East, Europe to as far as Central America.

Well-known for its comfortable, easy to mix-and-match, colourful and energetic style, Bossini offers a full
range of good value for money casual wear apparel products including ladies’, men’s, young, kids' and
babies’ wear, which are designed to fit customer needs.

EREEBREEERLF ([A2F] ; FEBESRZMERQIAZBRHME ( [REARE] ) 592) REKBEAR
([#&E] & [£HiE] ) REARBNREREEEA - TEBNBTELH -

EWEARFNER  B-AN\CFHREMZEERUR KBTS FNAERE  CSEY T —ERANEKREE
FERDHPE - ZAEBRREFRH, 1780 EH - HH-38RMMURER « FEIARE - 8 » FIKKERAZNEEE
HHAKEEREE - RINARENSESD  FREETEAEZRA26MBTREER - BITEIE  AEEE
BEBHEE  REA24BEOBFEEER  2HRREE > 7R - BNREZEHINELH28EER -

EPERENARARERRAESE B8kt B+ 55 RERBRRY - FREREWANRE  XEREFE - 5
REH  EREEXTmENMZEEHHE
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We promote the “be happy” brand value, encourage
everyone to “be happy” and cultivate attitudes of
proactivity and optimism.

B [BRE | BEMAVmEERS > SBAA [ERE]
TEBBBYEBHALRE -
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS = J& Zh IR 38 b1 14

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to report Bossini’s audited annual results for the
year ended 30 June 2009.

A year of challenge - the year at a glance

The financial tsunami over the past year caught many businesses off guard. The unprecedented global financial
crisis has had far reaching consequences, not just on the banking system, but also for domestic economies in
general.

At Bossini, we were not immune to the short-term impact of this economic turmoil. Nevertheless, we acted
promptly to minimise the adverse impact to our business development. During the year under review, we
managed our costs effectively and pragmatically. We continued our investments in the developing and emerging
markets like Mainland China. All these enabled us to deliver acceptable financial results under such gloomy
conditions.

Swift responses led to profitability

The adverse impact brought forth from the financial crisis worsened in the second half of 2008/09. In response,
the management remained to adhere to its pre-set business strategies and implemented the plans flexibly to the
best benefits of the Group’s long term developments.

Owing to our mitigating efforts, as anticipated, our revenue just declined slightly by 3% to HK$2,254 million
(2008: HK$2,317 million). Operating profit totalled HK$60 million (2008: HK$90 million). Net profit attributable
to equity holders reached HK$50 million (2008: HK$64 million). Although the recovery of the economy is still
unclear, we remained confident in the Group’s future development. The Board thus proposed a final dividend of
HK1.0 cent per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per share, the total dividend for the year
amounted to HK2.0 cents per share, which is equivalent to a payout ratio of 63% (2008: 25%).

Managing through the downturn

The year under review revealed our solid fundamentals and positive financial position. As of 30 September 2009,
the net cash balance stood at a healthy level of HK$318 million. Immediately upon the approach of the financial
tsunami, faced with severe market competition and rising pressures on pricing, we conducted cost reduction
exercises in all markets which resulted in lower selling and distribution costs and administrative expenses by
HK$35 million against prior year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008/09 %3

HEMRR :

AAEBERKEZEZR(EER)  MAREZEMNEHE_FTTNFAHA
STHLEFEZEREREFES -

RRRBH—F - 2FEE

BE-FHENSHERSHAZLERFTF IR - AIAMABNZIRER
fERFERE TEPERRITER  TRESHALEE -

BEREBEHGRERNENTE  EMEABSTES - BERRFA
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S50FBT(ZTEENF  B¥64TEL) - ARB LK EERN S
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REFIRI.OBW  ERPHREFRIOBIL  2FRELELAER
2.0l - BER63%HKREXR(ZZEZENF : 25%) °

RIREERNE

BEFERASDBEIRMEENERARRIFNMBGAR - RZEEN
FAA=ZTH AEERSFHRLEFEEEI1BE T 2IBREKT - &
TRUBWMBRER HYHRNTHSRFRFELANERESD &M
Wa BIFE & KT 5 1 H IR IR AN #E b+ R R 36 & e D SE A A FITT IR B 2
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS F & EUIR R (K&

Treasuring the export franchise business and Mainland China market

Hong Kong remained as the key market of our business, accounting for 56% (2008: 56%) of the Group’s
consolidated revenue. This solid revenue stream was mainly generated from the Hong Kong retail market and
export franchise business.

In Mainland China, despite the financial crisis, we stepped up our presence by increasing overall retail floor area
and introducing 86 additional directly managed and franchised stores. The underlying benefit of this strategy led
to a 5% growth in sales there.

The growth in our export franchise business coupled with that in Mainland China helped to offset the negative
impact of the financial tsunami on other markets.

Treasuring employees’ value

Despite the global financial downturn over the year, assessing critically our overall operations and considering
the long term development needs of the Group, we adopted different approaches to reduce operating costs, yet
as a responsible employer, we did not significantly trim
down our human resources or fringe benefits as we are
deeply rooted in our shared values of “employees and
the company are bonded by a commitment to serve
each other’s interests in the best way possible”.

Treasuring brand value

Since the kick off of our brand revamp in Hong
Kong in March 2007, we have been continuously
strengthening our brand image and enhancing
our brand value with every effort, of which the
effectiveness were, to certain extent, exhibited in the
awards and recognitions earned by the Group in Hong
Kong. Following the winning of a number of awards
in 2007/08, the Group won a further of 8 awards and
recognitions in total, which included:

ERHOBHFECLEXBREIBEAETS

ERNATETH - AROE(EEERA WHEH56% (— B /\F
56%) o WM KA TERAEETENIHREOEHEE
%75

R BEARTS - ML KREASETEMARIERESE 5B
EETEEEEM RN RS AR TR RS SR AR MR T
R AE R TEEE - I H A AR T 5% R -

HABHEEEBRPREAET S EBER FETSREBEE
s camEE -

BERET

BE—F BELEZFERGE  HMAREMAHBEZERR X
ZREEREZER2FE  BEACKDZSEERDIORELERA
BIHAREIE T RABRTHR G
WERES  BRUA—E8ETNE
TEREE REERKEEEM
Rig BB B THEF

ERmBER

BT+ F = AREBHEITRE
BEAR RO EFEZ I
{EmEFER » TEELEMEEE -
B R - ErEFTERIAR R
BR—— T TENEE
ESZERIEEL  FAREEHR
EESEEE  HhafF

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED &R EBEER AR
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HK Corporate Brand Award 2008 — Marketing Award (Ming Pao
Newspapers Limited)

The Best For Home Award 2008 — 2009 (Hong Kong Economic Times —
Take Me Home)

TVB Weekly The Most Popular Brand Award 2008 — The Most Popular
Apparel Brand 2008 (TVB Weekly)

100 Most Wanted Brands 2008 — Most Wanted By Female Mainland
Visitors (OSSIMA Publishing Group Limited)

Major Strategic Developments

Apart from the above, for the year ended 30 June 2009, Bossini stepped
forward with the following major strategic developments:

To highlight the deeply rooted healthy and cheerful image so as to further
enhance our brand value, the Group launched a proposition “be happy”
in mid-June 2009 to cultivate a life attitude of proactivity and optimism.

"bossinistyle”, an additional separate line under the Bossini umbrella,

was first introduced to the Hong Kong and Singapore markets, following
its launch in the Mainland China market a few years ago. The collections
of this brand target office ladies who favour stylish designs with character.

The Group launched “Yb” standalone shops in the Mainland China market.
"Yb" offers a vibrant product line that targets young customers who
are fashion conscious and constantly looking for elements that embrace
individualism.

In January 2009, the Group’s Corporate Headquarters was moved to
Western Kowloon, Hong Kong. The new office offers an improved and
larger working environment and facilitates nurturing of creativities for our
staff. Besides, the new “Bossini Logistic Centre” in Hong Kong commenced
operation in June 2009, further enhancing the Group's operational
efficiency and effectiveness. These new establishments have earmarked
our determination for long-term developments and expansions, which
complemented our mission to create incremental value for the brand every day
in every way.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008/09 %3

BELERMMEIEE2008 — FHEHE
ErEREEARBREERLIA)
ERRERE REAE2008 — 2009 (BE
KEAR - EEER)

(TVBAETI) — & AR MM AL 2008 — &

ZEGD RS B 2008 (TVB & TI)

1008k 7 G 82008 — & AT ERE
W mE(BREBHREEBFRAT)

TERBMUEER

BRIA LR - BWERBE _ZTTNFAA

+

BIEFERNTZREATREMEER

“EENFAAR AEEREREEMEE
RARDHBEREL R  FEABLEM
MRS [ EREESH A EIRL
BRAERE -

BEMEFRAREMSHEHOERMEETE
S Tbossinistyle| » FR B EERE KX
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FIE » [Yb )& A 780 - E BRI B B 8t &
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BYER BB RYARPLHEK  RE
EEEERREZERMORL AKER
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Looking to the future

Over the past two decades, Bossini underwent several courses of financial turmoil yet remained sound and intact.
With our perseverance and ability to cope with adversities, we are still confident and cautiously optimistic on the
future. The management will continue to listen to our customers whilst improving continuously, with an end in
mind to shape up Bossini to become a robust and flourishing multinational enterprise.

Owing to the tardy economic recovery in Europe and the United States, it is expected that an abundance of
international brands would be flooding towards Asia, targeting Mainland China in particular as the major
market. Meanwhile, the Mainland China market would be overwhelmed with plenty of local brands, rendering
increasingly relentless competition in this market. We will devote considerable efforts towards establishing a
strong foundation to enhance the “bossini” brand to help bolster the Group’s long-term sustainable growth. To
this end, we launched a more prominent brand proposition “be happy” in June 2009 to highlight our deeply
rooted healthy and cheerful image, and conveyed our wish to promote a proactive and optimistic life attitude.

For the coming fiscal year, we will continue to focus on export franchising business, Mainland China market
expansion and brand enhancement, which will be complemented with our further efforts in cost effectiveness and
our pragmatic approach to expand markets in various locations.

To become a leader in the international mass apparel industry, Bossini will continue to nourish a dedicated
management team and staff, and establish a strong and extensive international footprint to achieve our vision to
becoming “the top-of-mind brand leader”.

| wish to take this opportunity to thank all our members of staff for their hard work and contributions. At the
same time, | would like to express my gratitude to all our shareholders, customers and business partners for their
continued support to Bossini.

CHAN So Kuen
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
22 October 2009

&2 R
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT hEEA#E

The Board is committed to maintain a solid, transparent and sensible framework of corporate governance for the
Company and its subsidiaries and will continue to review its effectiveness. The Company has applied the principle
and complied with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code"”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for a deviation as specified and explained below.

Board of Directors

At 30 June 2009, the Board is composed of 3 executive directors and 4 independent non-executive directors
(collectively the “Directors”) whose biographical details are set out in “Directors’ profiles” section on pages 41 to
42 and are posted on the Company’s website www.bossini.com. The Directors had no financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationships with each other at 30 June 2009.

The 4 independent non-executive directors (“INEDs"”) represent more than one-third of the Board. None of
them has served more than nine years and at least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. All of the INEDs have confirmed in writing their
independence from the Company and met the requirements set forth in the independence guidelines of the
Listing Rules. All INEDs are also members of the Company’s Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.
These INEDs are high calibre executives who bring a diversified range of expertise and serve the crucial function
of providing checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of shareholders and the Group as a whole.

The Board held eight full Board meetings in the year under review to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group. The attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings for
the year is set out as follows:

EERFNA/ARAREMBARGRRE AERERAEZEE
BRIER  UMBBEFEEKRR R TIXAEERMENE TRES
BN ARR-—ERAEEMEXSMAERAAES LRI (T L
MAID KT mAENEEERER T (TREERTA ORI R
BT EFTE A ST RMRSURE -

0
RZZZNFARA=ZTH EXFRKERE-ZWITESETRNABEL
FRTEF(RRIEF])  SEFLHECHIRFLIEESNAZ

[EFEEHN ] RATHEEwww.bossini.come RZEZEHENA=+H "
EECEVENR 2% RBXHEMEZRAEBBE -

MEBIUHATEE((BUFRTETNEEERREAB =22
AL - EBEERALEEAARABLINTEESREEBNF W
BERRL—2BIUFATESTABAREN ST ARV BEEENE
XER 2RBVIINTESCRIERE BREHARFANEL
- WRHEHN ETRUABIEESINRE 2BBUENTES
AFTAARARERLZBEERTHEEENE - ELBIIFNTES
EREFNITBRAR  MEABZTENEXME TR AREEREH
RHOBEZNGE - AEERREARE R EEN G -

REBEFERN HBRTNAAEZR2EEH  UATSEZEER
KUREERPBERE SEFTEFARESRE2BEENLREFE
;T -

No. of meetings attended/held
Members of the Board &% Hk 8 BRLEAEBITRE
Executive Directors #1{T& %
Mr. LAW Ka Sing (Chairman) (resigned on 21 August 2009) ZRE %4 (X&) (R=ZZTTAFENA =+ —HET) 7/8
Ms. CHAN So Kuen (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) BR & 184 + (Bl * &3 1T E ) 8/8
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund /£ & % 4 8/8
Mr. WONG Yan Sang (resigned on 20 May 2009) -4 %4 (ERZZZNFHEHA -+ BEHE) 6/6
Independent Non-executive Directors B F#TEE
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond 2= X & 55 & 3/8
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han Z2ZE % + 8/8
Prof. SIN Yat Ming % B B % 8/8
Mr. WONG Wai Kay T # % 4 4/8

ANNUAL REPORT 2008/09 %3



The Board meets regularly at least four times every year. The Directors participated in person or through electronic
means of communication. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in the prior year to provide sufficient notice
to the Directors and facilitate the maximum attendance of the directors. The Board members are given an
opportunity to include additional matters for discussion and are supplied with relevant information by the senior
management and reports relating to the Group’s operational and financial performance before the scheduled
Board meetings in a timely manner.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board and Committee meetings will be sent to all Directors or Committee
members for their comment and records respectively. The Board member can seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Group’s expense, if necessary.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a transaction to be considered by the Board and the Board has determined
this interest to be material, the individual is required to declare his interest and to abstain from voting. At least
one INED who has no material interest in the transaction shall be present at the full Board meeting approving such
transaction.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separated. During the year, Mr. LAW Ka Sing was the
Chairman and Ms. CHAN So Kuen was the Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Subsequent to the
balance sheet date, on 21 August 2009, Mr. LAW Ka Sing resigned as the Chairman.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

It is more efficient and in the best interests of the Company that the new Directors to be appointed in full Board
meeting, as this allows a more informed and balanced decision on suitability of the potential appointee. The
background, experience, professional skills, availability to commit to the affairs of the Company and, in case of
INED, the independence requirements set out in the Listing Rules, of the potential appointee will be taken into
consideration.

All INEDs of the Company are appointed for specific terms, their length of service with the Company is one year
from the dates of their appointments which will be automatically renewed unless early termination by either party
serving not less than three months prior written notice or upon mutual consent on short notice. They are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company (“AGMs") in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company.

lax

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT TEESH{E

EEZR—FRICANOREESE EFERFLFELEBE AR
HAZE - EHEFREFNFHRR LBAFEDLHR - HBRAE
ERUEHEH  UEBERSHNHFEX - EAHEHREERGHA
REEFHAREREBN FRIAGEARLEFEEHSREEE
RENEHEERNAEEZEER VB RROME -

EERERLEERZET R ZTRERRERIBEXATE
EHZEGER UREBARLEEBEZA -EAFE2H  EFBKE
ARABELEXERNETHMNBRYE  BERAAREM -

FREFHEFRETERNRSAZRTHFENEER  MEFR
REBEANNGZER  PRNEFARRNGE  XARERE -
MERAKEZREREZZTR  FLUAARI URRHGFIE
EEAMNBNBIIFRTEELE

TEMATERAEE

TRETRAHRBIZEE FRAEXRELERTIREMREB/LL
REXIERTHAH EH&ERR R_TTAFN\A-_F+—-B &
FELRECDEETRE -

EENRIEREE
EERSEENAMMETAFREENRET BRAREREXRETAA
LREHBHESNEANG AREEBELT  BHEBENEZRES
BHRHEETBEERFEMARBENRE -ERESENHES
B SLEHESR ERBUIFNTES  AFETRLEHRAAM
582 BB

RARABBIINTEETIERERTFY AN RBFNEH
HEZTRREA AP —F RIFEN-—TFTHETTIIR=ZEANF
AEABAXKESTRBRERL  SRAIKEHEY - REAQFN
BRRAR PARARANBRBFAS (RRAEFAE])) L&HE
RENBEEEL -
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Directors receive an induction document on their appointment to the Board as appropriate, covering matters such
as the operation and activities of the Group, the role of the Board, the tasks and membership of the principal
Board committees, the powers delegated to those committees and the Board’s governance policies and practices.
On their appointment, Directors are advised on their legal and other duties and obligations as directors of a listed
company.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, all newly appointed director of the Company shall hold office until the
next AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director, save any Director holding office as Chairman or
Managing Director, including those appointed for a specific term shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in office since
their last election but as between persons who became Directors on the same day shall be determined

by lot, unless they otherwise agree between themselves. The retiring Directors shall be

eligible for re-election.

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are not subject to retirement by rotation. The Board

considers that the continuity of the Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer of the Company and their
leadership are crucial in maintaining the stability of the
Group’s business operations.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee plays a vital role in corporate
governance of the Group and comprises 4 INEDs, namely
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han, Prof.
SIN Yat Ming and Mr. WONG Wai Kay. Ms. Leung, who
has professional qualifications in accounting and financial
management expertise, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors. The Audit Committee is

MESHEEZERBER —NREXS  NMEAKENEHREE
EXZRRE IREFZBENIEBLAKE ZEZEEWENES
REBEERNEARBLRER EFCRZECRESIEALTAAE
EARNEREEREMBRERER

REARFANERAA SREEERTENHES  ANEHSE
BEETRERERBFRGAL  UNAEEREEEME REERRAEF
REL ER=ZDZ-IWMEEF/ARALF==0FE  RIKER
BRIEB=Dz—MNER(EEIRXNEFLKLBLEERIN AR
BRE EBUEEREAEEIHCERARSB=FHEREI—
R-BFAESRZEFTRBRALAERESARZEUREN SR
EX MEMBEB - REZNREERAES  AINHMEBREAREZ
Ex(RERTEABRINZE W) - REESFARBREE -

RRBHETE RATHAERIL T
EWERENREMRR - &
ERBRARBEFE RITHAE
RN BUEREES  DER
AEEEBREENBRER

\I]]]I]
T8

BEZE

ERZESRECEERTEMNT
ERHE—EAREEENACY
HOBRBIIFRTEEFTXRE
£ REBZL  EABHEEREE
MESLEAENK - RELTEBEZ
BEmMER MEStMEERE
FTEHABEXERIANE BEE
“EBEHKE RARRHREING
REROREERA - ARBDREH

provided with sufficient resources, including the advice of external V‘
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auditors and Internal Audit Department to discharge its duties. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
consolidated financial results for the year ended 30 June 2009.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set out clearly in the terms of reference which are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code and are available on the Company’s website. The terms
of reference for the Audit Committee are also aligned with the guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee met 2 times during the year to review the accounting policies and practices adopted by
the Group with Executive Directors, senior management and the Company’s internal and external auditors. It also
discusses matters related to financial reporting, internal controls, risk management and appointment of external
auditors. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the Group. The
attendance of individual committee members is set out hereunder.

The major works of the Audit Committee during
the year are as follows:

(@) reviewed the financial results for the year
ended 30 June 2008 and interim financial
results for the 6 months ended 31 December
2008;

(b) reviewed the progress report and report on
internal audit results and internal controls for
the year ended 30 June 2008 and 6 months
ended 31 December 2008 prepared by Internal
Audit Department respectively; and

(c) approved and confirmed the annual audit plan
for the year ending 30 June 2010 of Internal Audit

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT TEESH{E
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with specific
written terms of reference. At 30 June 2009, the Remuneration Committee
consists of 1 executive director and 4 INEDs, namely Mr. LAW Ka Sing, Mr. LEE
Man Chun Raymond, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han, Prof. SIN Yat Ming and Mr. WONG
Wai Kay. Ms. Leung is the Chairman for the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set out clearly in
the terms of reference which included the duties specified in the CG Code and are
available on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy and structure of the Directors and senior management and
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on such

YHEZB e BAEREIEERERAERE
ABZHMEREERE - RELGIET IS5
B I 5 i 7 AR S A9 IE AR T BB B R A9 A2

remuneration. Fr MEERBIRLER -
No director is involved in any decisions as to his own remuneration. The Group's MEEZ P RABEERS ZFHMZ MR
remuneration policy seeks to provide a fair market remuneration so as to attract, retain and F o AREBZHMWHREMNHIBEAFEZMEBEHFIH - LR
motivate high quality staff. Sl -BmEBRESHSERETL -
Two remuneration committee meetings were convened during the year and the attendance of individual ARBIRNFAEBHAMATHNEE S SR SEEENENLEFE
committee members is set out as below: Bl N
Audit Committee meetings Remuneration Committee meetings
ERZEREH FHESaeE
Members of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee B ZE & RFMZE &K 8 Number of meetings attended/held Number of meetings attended/held
HE RS &HBITRE HERE, GEBITIRE
Chairman £[&
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han R %1%+ 212 212

Committee members ZE&/H &
Mr. LAW Ka Sing (appointed on 2 July 2008 and resigned on 21 August 2009)

BREEE(R_ZZENFLA-HEZE YR -_TZAFN\A=-+—-BED) N/A i 1”71
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond Z= 3218 5¢ 4 1/2 0/2
Prof. SIN Yat Ming %t B BA 4% 2/2 2/2
Mr. WONG Wai Kay T # £ %k 4 1/2 172
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Management Committee EELE®
RIRBEEEARESERESRATE MLENE
BN ERZESRESRETEEERRUE

BASEMNEESH  BEBEEBHARFHAH
BEBEENERNAE BEARTNFIITA
EEREERKREE BREZANESR

THRESERER N_ZEZNFAA=T
A ERZE8EeH-RRPTEFHEKIL AR
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The Board has delegated to the Management Committee the authority of dealing
with the operational matters of the Group, save for those matters which are
reserved for the Board’s decision and approval pursuant to the written terms of
reference, which includes taking in charge of major decision making in relation to
the day-to-day business operations of the Company, administering the Company’s
routine resolutions and dealing with ad-hoc matters, ensuring adequate funding and
reporting periodically to the Board. At 30 June 2009, the Management Committee
consists of 3 executive directors and assumes full accountability to the Board for all
operation of the Group.

A B BE 4% N A EB B T

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective system of EEREE RS —EABRE=mAA
internal controls particularly in respect of the controls on financial, operational, RN EPEE IR R o R E B 7S - &
compliance and risk management, to achieve the Company’s business strategies B CRENRBEESEEMNET - LA
and the Group’s business operations. During the year, the Board has reviewed the ERARNEBEBAREBNER

effectiveness of the system of internal controls through the Audit Committee. BE-EERN BEERDEBEREE KT
NBERRRZ BRI -

Internal controls and internal audit

The Group’s internal controls are evaluated by the Internal Audit Department
independently, operating since August 2002, on an on-going basis and covered
all major operations of the Group on a rotational basis. The key tasks of which
include:

REBOABEFHE _TZE_F )\ AREEN
NEBE BB LETHETIALNERTEE
AEBEMETEZEXY HIXET(FRRE:

(@) reviewing material aspects of the Group’s key activities and corresponding
internal controls with unrestricted rights of access;

() B4 T AR BN RS ASEE
TREFEREEABER
(b) EMERAEEEEEMMELNT

TEE B - 12 /7 Ko 1A 6 B2 422 48 8 2R R 1
BARNBEERGNTBERBRIE:

(b) conducting audits on the work practices, procedures and internal controls
established by the business units of the Group on a regular basis in order
to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls system

established;
&)
() conducting special reviews and investigations into areas of concern identified ,"ﬁv\?‘q (0 REBBMEINFRETRIRS
by management; and 7.2 — & E
(d) monitoring the corrective actions taken by relevant departments. (d) BEEBREIPIPTEITREREE -

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED &R EBEER AR
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The internal audit charter was approved and adopted by the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department
adopted a risk-based approach to develop the annual audit plan, which is reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee. It furnishes independent and objective evaluations and recommendations in the form of an audit
report to management. Internal Audit staffs are authorised to access any information relating to the Company
and to make enquiries to staffs concerned, and the head of the Internal Audit Department will directly report to
the Audit Committee on the major audit findings and management responses.

The Internal Audit Department reports twice each year to the Audit Committee and the Directors on significant
findings on internal controls. The Board has, through the works of the Audit Committee and the Internal Audit
Department, carried out ongoing examination and monitoring of the Company’s internal controls system and
completed the evaluation of the internal controls system.

The Bossini Group Policy set forth a set of standards to all employees to govern the operations of the Group
in legal, financial, procurement, human resources, corporate governance and public relation spheres, and will
facilitate the ongoing examination and evaluation of the Group’s compliance with relevant rules and regulations
and of the effectiveness of internal controls. Employees are expected to strictly adhere to the Bossini Group Policy
and encouraged to alert senior management of potential cases of misconduct without fear of retribution. The
Bossini Group Policy was first issued in March 2004. It is taken up for review and

renewal on an annual basis by the designated Group Policy Committee.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

’

The Bossini Group Policy laid down a code of conduct regarding the directors
securities transactions in terms as stringent as those set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors and Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Based on the specific enquiry made,
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Bossini Group Policy
throughout the year. Employees are not encouraged to deal in the securities
of the Company within one month before the interim and the final results
announcements and prohibited to make use of price-sensitive information to deal
in the securities of the Company.

Directors’ interest at 30 June 2009 in the share capital and underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) are set out on pages 48 to 49.
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Financial Reporting and External Auditors’ Remuneration

The Directors recognise the responsibility for preparing the financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs and of the results and cashflows of the Group on a going concern basis with the support
from the Finance Department. The responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors with respect to the financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 62 to 63.

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory audit work of the Group
amounted to HK$2.32 million, of which a sum of HK$1.98 million was paid to the Group’s principal external
auditor, Ernst & Young (“EY"). The remuneration for EY and its affiliated firms, for services rendered is broken
down below:

lax

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT TEESH{E

B 755 D i Ko MBS Az B8 i B

EEANBMMEN BT B TARSELLELERUTAEA TR
MAEEZFBRR FERRSREBRRAOEM - IMNSRBEIE X
ERERRETZERCHIINAFREC2ECSAMN B ZBARE

ER-
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HEZSTZANFAAZTBELEER  AEEETEFTIEMNT T
HZBE e AEH232B88 T BREK 1888 TEXNTAE
BN EEINEZEMLKEEMEBHA ([ZX]) - K KEBBA
AIFTIREMRBH eSO T -

HK$ million &% &5 &t

Audit services #Z &t R % 1.98
Non-audit services 3£ & Bk 7%
Tax representative services i 7% & R 1% 0.21
Interim result review services 1 Hf % 45 & B iR 75 0.20
Connected transaction review services & 32 5 2 M IR % 0.10
Total #25t+ 2.49

Communication with shareholders

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information on the Group to shareholders through the
publication of notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. Moreover, additional information is
also available to shareholders through the Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The Board also
welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.

Corporate transparency and investor relations

The Group disseminates information on business development on a timely basis through various channels to
maintain transparency of its operation. The Company meets with analysts and overseas institutional investors
from time to time so that investors can make recommendations and enquiries. The Company also holds regular
conferences and meetings with financial analysts and investors, at which the Company’s management directly
provides relevant information and data to financial analysts, fund managers and investors, as well as answer their
queries.

B IR 1 U8 4

EERBEETINBES 2 BE PHEFERE  BO/KRE
HEWREZENEEXEEH - N RRTABARTBURES
BEIDERSEZEN BEXFRTELURRHZERAEENEBHIR
HERAREBBMLERRACRESZRNEEEEZR BRI
DR EIR ©

CEREPAERREEBRE

AEEBBTRANREERBEEEXRBERESURESLEEENER
B ARATKESTENEBIMEBIREERTER  TEREER
HEZHELEH - AARMERERBONERREZERTHANGRE
FoRRERERNSLEERMBONE HeKERREERME
BER  AR@EMPINER -

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED &R EBEER AR

19






MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEst:m k24

Overview

Our top line and bottom line performances were impacted as an

aftermath of the global financial crisis, which has shaken economies,

altered government policies and triggered steep discounts throughout
the retail industry. Challenging as it was, however, the Group remained
profitable and ended fiscal year 2008/09 with a healthy balance sheet and
a positive financial position.

Faced with severe competition and uncertainties across the global
marketplace, our management has responded promptly and meticulously
to overcome obstacles. Pragmatic measures were taken to manage costs

more effectively while our international network was expanded with
diligence.

Financial Performance

Revenue for the year ended 30 June 2009 was down
3% to HK$2,254 million (2008: HK$2,317 million),
primarily due to slowing demand as a result of the
unprecedented global financial tsunami. The Group
recorded gross profit of HK$1,113 million (2008:
HK$1,170 million), representing a gross margin of
49%, down slightly from 50% last year. Operating
profit decreased 33% to HK$60 million (2008:
HK$90 million), equivalent to an operating margin

of 3% (2008: 4%). EBITDA for the year under
review was HK$135 million (2008: HK$163
million), which accounted for 6% of the Group’s
total revenue (2008: 7%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B Est:m k24

Despite the challenging business environment, Bossini recorded profit attributable to equity ,4
holders of HK$50 million (2008: HK$64 million), down by 21% compared to the previous /b,’.
fiscal year. Basic earnings per share for the year under review were HK3.16 cents (2008:
HK4.01 cents).

Bossini maintained a healthy financial
position with a net cash balance of
HK$265 million as of 30 June 2009
(2008: HK$310 million).

Operating Efficiencies

Operationally the Group recorded a 3%
(2008: 5% growth)
decline during the year under review due

same-store sales

to the severity of the global financial crisis
that hit in September 2008. While our
Mainland China market witnessed modest

growth, posting a 5% same-store sales
growth (2008: remained flat), Hong Kong,
Taiwan and Singapore markets recorded
same-store sales declines of 2%, 12%
and 8% (2008: 6%, 5% and 4% growth)
respectively. Consequently, for the year ended
30 June 2009, the Group's overall net sales
per sq. ft. declined 11% to HK$2,500 (2008:
HK$2,800).
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To manage through the rising pressures from
pricing and competition, management responded
swiftly and proactively to enhance operational
efficiency. As a result, administrative expenses
decreased 8% to HK$236 million (2008: HK$256
million). The Group's operating profit decreased 33%
to HK$60 million (2008: HK$90 million), representing an
operating margin of 3% (2008: 4%).

Operating Cost Analysis & &K A5 T
2009 2008
—sBhE BE I

HK$ million % of revenue HK$ million % of revenue Change (%)

BEEET HERFES BB =Pl a2 (%)

Revenue Ytz 2,254 100% 2,317 100% -3%
Selling and distribution costs $5% & 5 5 A 779 35% 794 34% 2%
Administrative expenses 1TEf XX 236 10% 256 11% -8%
Other operating expenses E fth &8 &% 51 2% 41 2% +25%
Total operating expenses #4248 fi 1,066 47% 1,091 47% 2%
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Business Review

Network Expansion

The Group remained focused on expanding its
Mainland China market and export franchise
business. During the year under review, the
Group increased its international market
presence in a controlled and pragmatic manner.
As of 30 June 2009, Bossini had 538 (2008:
477) directly managed stores and 640 (2008:
579) franchised stores globally. Out of the
1,178 (2008: 1,056) stores in total, 578 (2008:
492) stores were located in Mainland China,
representing the most widely expanded region
among all other single regions during 2008/09.
Our stores could be found in 33 countries and
regions across the globe.

The following is a breakdown by geographical
location and store type:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B Est:m k24
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Hong Kong &%
l\/lainland China B K R

Singapore #1103

Malaysia 55 2& P58

Other countries and regions E A B ZR & Hb [&
Total # 5t

Directly managed stores

EREEEMR

41
362
84
31
20

2009
—EEhF
Franchised stores
B REEH
216
424
640

538

2008

—ET)NEF
Directly managed stores Franchised stores
HEEEES R AR & R
41 -
304 188
89 -
29 -
14 -
- 391
477 579
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Co-branded and Licensed Products

To constantly offer a fresh sensation to our customers, Bossini continued to
take initiatives to strengthen brand image and awareness and diversify its
product lines by launching co-branded licensed products with partners that
share common brand values and targeted customer groups.

anhE S 1E SR R E M

ERE-BENERNEERASERETR LR
€ BEERRESREPHNAERHHERZNR
EREENEEEM BREFERRIIEBS
T REETREZHE -

Bossini promoted the “be happy” brand value in partnership with the globally

acclaimed icon SmileyWorld and introduced the bossini x SmileyWorld apparel

collection in June 2009. Over 30 attractively designed products, including baby
clothing, fashions for kid’s plus men’s and ladies’ wear and a wide range of
accessories were launched, encouraging everyone to “be happy” and cultivating
attitudes of proactivity and optimism. The Group also introduced
bossini x Sesame Street, bossini x Mr. Men &
Little Miss and bossini x Hanadeka Club during
the year under review.

7%‘}%—*1§{tﬁ1ﬁﬁ’]u%ﬁ§i¥"‘F”“’*"f?%iaﬂ AR
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AIERE]  SHEBREBOAERE TR
[O] B2 F NAB & HE Hbossini x(E it #5) ~ bossini
X Mr. Men & Little Miss Kbossini x Hanadeka
ClubAX 8 F X3 »

Operational Performance by Markets
For the year ended 30 June 2009, in terms of
geographical breakdown, Hong Kong remained the

BmiEE D 2iERIE
Hz—_ZTZAFA=1+H
IEFE - R 58 FED
REANEEE 2 WA TR
B (BN E256% (Z2F
)\¢ 156%) o REIKBENESE
CEEEREN21% (ZEF
)\¢-19%) EEEREE H
MRS RELE - 2 HIME12% -
9% F2% (ZET)N\F : 14% -
10% % 1%) °

major contributor to the Group’s sales, accounting for
56% (2008: 56%) of consolidated revenue. Mainland
China ranked second, contributing 21% (2008:
19%) to consolidated revenue, followed by Taiwan,
Singapore and Malaysia, accounting for 12%, 9% and
2% (2008: 14%, 10% and 1%), respectively.
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Hong Kong
During the financial year, revenues generated from Hong Kong, comprising retail

and export franchising sales, only slightly declined by 1% to HK$1,279 million
(2008: HK$1,291 million), despite the sluggish retailing conditions. This was
primarily due to intense competition in the apparel industry in Hong Kong as
well as weakened consumer demand and falling confidence due to the economic
slowdown.

The Group adopted a controlled and pragmatic approach for its expansion in the
Hong Kong market. To this end, the management decided on maintaining the same
number of directly managed stores as in the previous fiscal year. There were 41
directly managed stores (2008: 41). In September 2008, its first "bossinistyle" shop
was launched in Hong Kong receiving enthusiastic customer response due to the
new shop image, impressive interior decoration and the range of

diversified smart casual products on offer.

In retail terms, same-store sales declined 2%

in this sector (2008: 6% growth) due to weak
consumer demand and general consumer belt
tightening. Total retail floor area in Hong Kong
stood at 143,100 sq.ft. as of 30 June 2009
(2008: 148,100 sq. ft.). Net sales per sqg. ft. was
HK$5,500 (2008: HK$5,700), down slightly from
the previous fiscal year. Operating profit from
Hong Kong reached HK$127 million (2008: HK$143
million), representing an operating margin of 10%
(2008: 11%).

In global export franchise markets, we added a total
of 33 new stores to our portfolio, bringing the total
number of stores to 424 (2008: 391).
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MAINLAND
CHINA

Despite lingering negative consumer sentiment around the globe, our
expansion pace in Mainland China market surpassed that in our other
regions. This was bolstered by the Chinese government’s efforts to
encourage domestic consumption to offset the impact of declining
exports.

Revenue generated from Mainland China rose 5% to HK$468
million (2008: HK$447 million), accounting for 21% of the Group’s
consolidated revenue (2008: 19%). Concerted efforts were also made
to expand this region’s retail floor area, resulting in a phenomenal
increase of 27% to 373,500 sq.ft. (2008: 293,600 sq. ft.).

The Group initiated a proactive growth strategy by adding to its
directly managed and franchised stores across Mainland China. In
fiscal year 2008/09, the Group had a total of 578 stores in Mainland
China (2008: 492). There were 362 directly managed stores (2008:
304) and 216 franchised stores (2008: 188), bringing the total to 409
stores under the “bossini” brand (2008: 332) and 169 stores under the
“bossinistyle” umbrella (2008: 141). While net sales per sq. ft. dropped
8% to HK$1,100 (2008: HK$1,200), same-store sales posted a 5%
rise for the year ended 30 June 2009 (2008: remained flat). This clearly
demonstrated management’s acumen in expanding its presence and
network in Mainland China, tapping into the tremendous underlying
potential growth of the apparel industry.

While we are still in the midst of the investing period, there were only
slight improvement in the overall business performance. Operating
loss in the Mainland China market dropped to HK$34 million, (2008:
HK$37 million), representing an operating margin of negative 7%
(2008: negative 8%).
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Taiwan

Political instability and a slowing global economy especially
in the United States made business operations extremely
difficult in Taiwan. Revenue generated by this market
totalled HK$275 million (2008: HK$323 million), a decline
of 15% compared to last year. It accounted for 12% of
the Group’s consolidated revenue (2008: 14%).

For the year under review, the Group’s total number
of directly managed stores stood at 84 (2008: 89).
Retail floor area decreased 7% to 119,800 sq. ft.
(2008: 129,400 sq. ft.). Same-store sales recorded a
negative growth rate of 12% (2008: 5% growth).
Net sales per sq. ft. also decreased 12% to
HK$2,200 (2008: HK$2,500). This region recorded b&hgﬂmf
an operating loss of HK$21 million (2008: HK$15
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FR(ZZTZENF : 129,400 15
W) BEREHEHEEGB12%0
BRE(ZTETNF  ER5%) °
BYARFHEBATRANRZRE
PEHE2, 200 (ZEENGF - B

million loss), equivalent to an operating margin of
negative 8% (2008: negative 5%).

Singapore

Likewise, the business environment in this market was very difficult. Singapore’s apparel sector presented severe
challenges, continues to see stiff competition and furthermore, consumer confidence hit an all time low in
November 2008. Revenue in this market were HK$194 million (2008: HK$223 million), accounting for 9% of the
Group’s consolidated revenue (2008: 10%) and representing a decline of 13% year-on-year.

There were altogether 31 directly managed stores in Singapore as of 30 June 2009 (2008: 29). The Group
recorded a negative same-store sales growth of 8% (2008: 4% growth). While the retail floor area increased 5%
to 35,400 sq. ft. (2008: 33,800 sq. ft.), net sales per sq. ft. declined by 6% to HK$5,800 (2008: HK$6,200). This
market has turned into loss making, incurring operating loss of HK$6 million (2008: HK$4 million profit), with an
operating margin of negative 3% (2008: positive 2%).
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Malaysia
During the fiscal year under review, revenue generated from this region rose 15% to HK$38 million (2008: HK$33

million), accounting for 2% of the Group’s consolidated revenue (2008: 1%). Same-store sales growth was 1%
(2008: 11% growth). Net sales per sq. ft. totalled HK$1,500 (2008: HK$1,800), representing a 17% decline
compared to the previous fiscal year under review. Bossini successfully opened 6 new stores in Malaysia. Total
number of stores increased to 20 (2008: 14), while the retail floor area increased substantially to 28,700 sq. ft.
(2008: 20,300 sq. ft.), representing a significant rise of 41%.

As an economy of scale has yet to be reached, the Malaysia market incurred an operating loss of HK$6 million
(2008: HK$5 million loss). Operating margin was negative 16% (2008: negative 15%).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's cash and bank balances stood
at HK$342 million (2008: HK$310 million)
as of 30 June 2009 and further increased to
HK$403 million as of 30 September 2009.
The Group’s net cash balance was HK$265
million (2008: HK$310 million) as of 30
June 2009 and further increased to HK$318
million as of 30 September 2009. The current
ratio stood at 2.27 times (2008: 2.61 times).
Total liabilities to equity ratio was 50% (2008:
39%).

The Group had bank borrowings of HK$77
million (2008: Nil) payable within one year. The
gearing ratio at 30 June 2009, calculated on the
basis of bank borrowings over total equity, is
12% (2008: Nil).
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The Group's inventory turnover days* reached 45
days for the year under review (2008: 36 days).
Return on equity ratio was 8% (2008: 10%).

#  Inventory held at year end divided by annualised
revenue times 365 days
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Bank guarantees given in lieu of utility and property rental deposits £ & /K E R B £i5 € 2 |ITIER

The Company has given guarantees in favour of banks to the extent of HK$509 million (2008: HK$450 million)
with respect to banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries. These facilities were utilised to the extent of
HK$89 million as of 30 June 2009 (2008: HK$14 million).

As of 30 June 2009, the Group had 4,200 full-time staff or the equivalent (2008: 3,900) in Hong Kong, Macau,
Mainland China, Taiwan, Singapore and Malaysia. The Group has a performance-based and share option
remuneration system and offered benefits, including insurance and retirement schemes as well as discretionary
performance bonuses.

While fiscal year 2008/09 was indeed challenging,
the Group managed to maintain profitability due to
the successful implementation of pragmatic business
strategies. The Group executed plans that put in place
a strong foundation to help bolster long-term growth.
Looking into the future, the global economic outlook
remains uncertain, however, management has mapped
out strategies to achieve continuous growth by focusing
on strengthening the “bossini” brand competitiveness,
expanding our presence in the fast growing Mainland
China market, expanding our export franchise business
and optimising internal operations to elevate cost ‘
effectiveness. More “bossinistyle” and “Yb" standalone @ "
shops will be added to our distribution network as part of wlﬂaﬁ? |
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Mainland China continues to show strong market growth potential.

A more recent strengthening of economic fundamentals present the
Group with tremendous opportunities to maintain its solid stronghold

in Mainland China’s developing causal apparel industry. For the new
fiscal year, management plans to introduce 100 additional directly
managed stores and 150 franchised stores to Mainland China, bringing
the total number of stores in this region to 820. While Mainland China
may emerge as the key growth driver, we will expand pragmatically and
steadily in other markets as well.

REFEBEEMTIFIER24EER - BN BF
B AEBEG &R L2745 -

We plan to add 24 stores in other regions. A total of 274 new stores will be
added to the Group during the coming fiscal year.
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In Asia, Bossini is well known for its good value for money, easy to mix
and match and outstanding customer services. With these formulas,

complemented with our continuous effort in enhancing our brand image
and value, we are striving to become a leader in the international mass
apparel industry.

HEABPRBIEBEEEER  BERERIBENFE
BEBABERE HE2BF BEERKFE 2R
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FrEMEEER  ARREHOBREEERMAYRFNR
RIEFBRELE -

Although there are signs that an economic recovery is under way, it is
still early to predict when an era of real sustainable growth will begin.
In the coming quarters, global macro-economic conditions will remain
a challenge. Nevertheless, we are cautiously optimistic about next
year, considering our proper mix of products, good value for money
proposition, and strong international network.
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CORPORATE CULTURE 12301t

ifies I@ng Iearnmg and encourages employees to

=1

pr@greés and excell ever,yday in eveny, way.

* \tk*ﬁ = 1

Bossini is a learning organisation that treasures knowledge sharing and life-long
learning. It encourages employees to progress and excel every day by offering
them comprehensive on-the-job training and focused programme.

In developing a unique corporate culture, the Group launched “the bossini
way” in mid 2002 to share with all staff its vision, mission and shared values,
cultivating proactive and positive working attitudes. Since May 2004, Bossini
has been cooperating with the Center For Effective Leadership (HK) Ltd and
Right Management Hong Kong Ltd to provide training for employees in the “7
Habits®".

We believe a corporate culture embracing “the bossini way” together with “7
Habits®" would align the vision and thus the direction of the Group as a whole.
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CORPORATE CULTURE 12301t

“the bossini way”
[BHEE < 8 |

VISION MISSION SHARED
S i VALUES *FfE=

To be the top-of-mind brand Ieader To create incremental value for the brand ~ Employees and the company are bonded by a commitment to
BEEEENmE m5EBNE every day ... in every way serve each other’s interests in the best way possible
BRABETHAREIEE BEIRARBIFHEAF — RRENERMBIRET
1. Be Proactive® 1. Face Reality 1. THiam® 1. YR E
2. Begin with the End in Mind® 2. Keep it Simple 2. LUR A14® 2 (RiEEEg
3. Put First Things First® 3. Act with the Speed of Light 3. B0 3. [RRITH)
4. Think Win Win® 4. Set Stretch Goals 4. EHDHE® 4. BiERE
5. Seek First to Understand, then to be Understood® | 5. Drive Quality 5. MR ® 5. MskiE
6. Synergize® 6. Create and Sustain a Learning Organisation 6. Giatin® 6. BB BT A AL
7. Sharpen the Saw® 7. Keep the A's, Nurture the B’s, Discard the C's 7. T EHH® 7. 1RE2 5B B C
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AWEBERHEE(F

Human Resources

We believe that employees are our most valuable asset. Enhancing staff engagement,
attracting, developing and retaining high caliber people are our key strategies to

support business growth.

The Group places great emphasis to promote “continuous improvement” and
maintain our distinctive and unique culture. We provide a wide range of training
courses, team-building programmes and knowledge sharing activities through
the Bossini Academy. Furthermore, tailor-made sales training and motivational
programmes are developed to help our front-line staff to meet the ever-changing
challenges of the retail industry. Besides internally designed programs, we also
provide certified management programmes from global talent management
consulting firm to selected leaders from front line and back office. Education
subsidies are also available for employees looking to deepen their knowledge on

topics relevant to their jobs or functions.

In addition to basic “7 Habits®” training, we set up the “7 Habits Ambassadors”
programme in Hong Kong to further deepening the culture across all levels of the
workforce. We are planning to extend this programme to other regions of the
group in the coming years. The new Hong Kong office has also incorporated the “7
Habits®” concept in the design of the office and provides a comfort and spacious

working environment to our staff.

Our priorities in the coming year are to drive performance and productivity, and
to deepen “7 Habits®” and the “be happy” brand value to promote proactive and

optimistic life attitude.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AWEBEBERHEE(F

Social Responsibilities

Bossini being a responsible corporate citizen has always supported social
development. Over the years we participated in series of community events and
encouraged our employees to do their parts in enriching the environment in which
we live and the worldwide communities in which we serve, and consequently we

have been awarded as a “Caring Company” for five consecutive years.

Bossini with the support of its staff has participated in many events during the year

which included:

o celebrated mid-autumn festival with the elderly at Yan Chai Hospital’s Fong
Yock Yee Neighborhood Elderly Centre

o staff together with families” member participated and donated to the Yan
Chai Charity Walk 2008

. 30-Hour Famine 2009

o teamed up with “Christian Actions” on the charity sales of second hand
books

. in view of the difficult economic situation impacted by the financial tsunami

in late 2008, Bossini have taken up a role in educating students on career
seminars which covers areas from job market highlights to job interview
strategies and received affirmative responses from both students and

teachers

Bossini will continue to invest and promote social responsibilities by building a caring

community spirit from within and spreading it into different walks of life.
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HK Corporate Brand Award 2008 —

Marketing Award

(by Ming Pao Newspapers Limited)

BEAEBHME2008 -
SRR LN TS0 r@u@[

(FAmMEBR AR EM)
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TVB Weekly

The Most Popular Brand Award 2008 -
The Most Popular Apparel Brand

(by TVB Weekly)

(TVB/A %Jh%?ﬁ/\ﬁu%ﬁﬁkﬁzoos -
SEGIRE @&

(TVBH FIE#)

Parent’s Choice Award 2008
(by Three Weekly)
REFHE(E O miE2008
CISRIES )

ﬁ%nnﬂﬁlg$2008 09

HUMAN RESOURCES AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES ANERRHEER

Sing Tao Excellent Services Brand 2006-2008
(by Sing Tao Daily)
E {8 IR % fh 122006-2008 (£ 5 B EH%)

: cansecidive years

- ______...' ﬁﬂ I B : Caring Company 2004-2099
Gﬂﬁﬂ sowrm (DY The Hong Kong Council of
w“‘g m“‘jmmmu Social Service)
Bt 7% 57 /& B £2004-2009

(BERLEREHEHEE)

100 Most Wanted Brands 2008 —
Most Wanted By

Female Mainland Visitors

(by OSSIMA Publishing Group Limited)
100/ 7 mm k#2008 —
XA AV RO 2 e
(RETIS R EE AR AT EH)

TVB Weekly Brilliant Family Brands Award
2009 — The Brilliant Family Fashion Brand
(by TVB Weekly)

CTVBE T #F m b 18 75322009 —
BEFHFREME

(TVvBETIE )

The Best For Home Award 2008-2009
(by Hong Kong Economic Times — Take Me Home)

L BARESEMEAHE2008-2009 (BEKLEBR - EFEREN)
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Executive Directors

Ms. CHAN So Kuen, aged 49, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group in January 2007. Ms.
Chan graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Oklahoma City University, the United States of
America, with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration. She is also a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Chan joined the
Group in August 2003 as the Director of Finance and appointed as the Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors
of the Company in August 2006. She has more than 26 years’ experience in auditing, financial management,
corporate finance and general management in audit firm, travel, property development, hotel investment and
management, household appliances trading and manufacturing, semiconductor and retail industries. Ms. Chan is
responsible for the overall direction, management and strategic planning of the Group.

Ms. CHAU Wai Man Pansy, aged 47, is the Director of Buying and Design of the Group. Ms. Chau graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Master's Degree in Business Administration (Fashion Business).
She joined the Group in July 2001. She has over 25 years’ experience mainly in product development, buying and
sales planning in leading fashion retail chains. She is responsible for strategic product planning and buying, together
with the design functions of the Group.

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund, aged 45, is the Director of Finance of the Group. Mr. Mak graduated from the
University of Windsor, Canada with two Bachelor’s degrees in Computer Science and Commerce. He is also a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Mak joined the Group in February 2007. He has over 19 years'
experience in auditing, financial management and corporate finance in audit firm, consumer electronics and
communications products, real estate service, food retail chain and internet service industries. Mr. Mak is responsible
for the overall financial management, corporate finance, legal, internal audit and investor relation functions of the
Group.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond 88s, JP, aged 38, was appointed in September 2004, is also a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee is the chief executive officer as well as
founder of Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 2314). He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Applied Science from The
University of British Columbia in Canada. Mr. Lee is currently involved in a number of public engagements. Mr.
Lee has been awarded honorary citizenship of Dongguan and reputational citizenship of Changshu. Mr. Lee was
awarded the “Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong 2002" and the “2003 Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Young
Persons Selection Awardees”. In addition, Mr. Lee received the “Bronze Bauhinia Star” (BBS) from the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2005 and was also appointed non-official Justice of the Peace (JP)
in 2007. Mr. Lee was also appointed the 11th CPPCC National Committee in 2008.

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han, aged 51, was appointed in September 2004, is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Ms. Leung holds a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce from The
University of Queensland, Australia and is a fellow member of CPA Australia. She has over 24 years' experience in
accounting, securities, corporate finance and related areas. Ms. Leung is also an independent non-executive director
of Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited (stock code: 374) and Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited (stock code: 629)
listed on the Stock Exchange since 1998 and 2007 respectively.

Prof. SIN Yat Ming, aged 54, was appointed in October 2005, is also a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Prof. Sin holds a Ph.D. from The University of British Columbia, Canada.
He is a director of Master of Science Programme in Marketing and a professor of Department of Marketing of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is serving as the advisor for the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing.

Mr. WONG Wai Kay, aged 47, was appointed in December 2004, is also a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration
for Executives and a Bachelor of Science Degree in Electronic Engineering from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is the co-founder and chairman of City Telecom (H.K.) Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
and the Nasdaqg National Market (stock code: 1137 and CTEL respectively). Currently, he is a member of Zhejiang
Committee, Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and a member of the Board of Trustees, United
College, The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is also a Honorary Advisor and a member of the Committee on
IT Training and Development of the Vocational Training Council.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY R EBEREE

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the two years ended 31 March 2005 and 2006, for the period
from 1 April 2006 to 30 June 2007, and the two years ended 30 June 2008 and 30 June 2009, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out below.

UTAAEERE_ZTAFL-_TERF-A=1t"RALMEFE BH-_FTEFHA-RE_ZTTLFA=THLH
B RBE_ZZEN\FAA=ZTEAR_ZZAFAA=THAIMAFEZXE  BERAERE @ DEOHREC TIBLERY
B

Results 345

Year ended
30 June
2009

BZE

—2ENF
AA=+H
LR
HK$000
BETT

REVENUE Wz 2,254,126 2,316,869 2,568,325 2,199,515 2,016,941

PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

EEEBEF 59,812 89,728 36,845 139,543 224,688
Finance costs & A7 (2,707) (2,204) (1,822) (722) (635)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRB{ AT )& 57,105 87,524 35,023 138,821 224,053
Tax I8 (6,853) (23,949) (25,829) (33,786) (42,908)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
ARARBRBREAREFERBREF 50,252 63,575 9,194 105,035 181,145

Assets and Liabilities EE R & &

30 June 2009
—EENF
~A=t+AH

HK$000
BET T

TOTAL ASSETS EE#4E 1,011,511 911,545 845,522 860,243 824,122
TOTAL LIABILITIES &f&#&E (338,751) (256,503) (268,965) (272,822) (263,084)

672,760 655,042 576,557 587,421 561,038
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year then ended 30 June 2009.

Principal activities
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal

subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and dividends
The Group’s profit for the year and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at 30 June 2009 are
set out in the financial statements on pages 64 to 156.

An interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share was paid by the Company on 29 April 2009. The
directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share in respect of the year
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on 30 November 2009. This
recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of retained profits within
the equity section of the balance sheet.

Summary of financial information

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the two years ended 31 March
2005 and 2006, the 15 months ended 30 June 2007, and the two years ended 30 June 2008 and 2009, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out on page 43. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 14
to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EERHEE

Share capital and share options
There was no movement in the Company’s authorised share capital during the year.

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital and share options during the year are set out in
notes 28 and 29, respectively, to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 30(b)
to the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves

At 30 June 2009, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$173,760,000, of which HK$15,939,000 has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year. Under the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s share premium account,
in the amount of HK$5,506,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Major customers and suppliers
In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the total
sales for the year.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 31% of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately 9%. Save
as disclosed in note 35(a)(ii) to the financial statements, none of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Mr. LAW Ka Sing (Chairman)

Ms. CHAN So Kuen (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund

Mr. WONG Yan Sang (resigned on 20 May 2009)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han

Prof. SIN Yat Ming

Mr. WONG Wai Kay

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 21 August 2009, Mr. LAW Ka Sing resigned as a director of the
Company.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 5 October 2009, Ms. CHAU Wai Man Pansy was appointed as a
director of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han and Mr. WONG Wai Kay, will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. WONG Wai Kay will not offer himself for re-election, and that
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han, being eligible, will offer herself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Ms. CHAU Wai Man Pansy, who was appointed on 5 October 2009, will hold office until the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer herself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms.
LEUNG Mei Han, Prof. SIN Yat Ming and Mr. WONG Wai Kay, and considers them to be independent.

Directors’ biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on pages 41 to 42 of the annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EERHEE

Directors’ service contracts ESRBEN

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the REERFBFAE FEEEECES  HEERNQRFI AR RNA
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other R—FRKIEMEBAESNEE CEERERIN ZREEHL

than statutory compensation.

Directors’ remuneration =40
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group has been set up by the board of directors or executive AEBRECHMERFEHEERANITESTRRE TR - EE KA
directors on the basis of their merit, qualification and competence. Mm&l 3z °

The emoluments payable to directors of the Company will be decided by the board of directors on the AAREEZMeBHEFTRRINEE S EERNES BT BE
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the directors’ duties, responsibilities and RERBEURAER 2 EEMEE
performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares EERROREBRO ZERE

At 30 June 2009, the interests of the directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the Company or its RZZEZTNFRA=TH EFRAQAHEHBRER (AEEF KR
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), 1665 (I35 5 M B E R ) SEXVEBFTEE T 2 M%) 2 A KRR+ -
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as BEEARRGERES MAEIKRAEISGEE 2 B Mt s s
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) HiRE ET R AR ERETIEFR HHIRESR A ([FEFAD) BRE AR
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were RINBEBBARGIERAA ([BRFT]) 2T :

as follows:
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RALR G EARZIFE -
Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest
HREE FHEERLE
Directly Percentage of
beneficially the Company’s
owned Total issued shares
=k; 3 EARREE BT
Name of director Enfh A&t RPE DL EEHE
Mr. LAW Ka Sing 1,093,091,098 1,093,091,098 68.58 ERERE
Ms. CHAN So Kuen 8,668,000 8,668,000 0.54 PRE=IRLZ T
1,101,759,098 1,101,759,098 69.12
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Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares (continued)
Long positions in share options of the Company:

Number of options directly
beneficially owned

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EERHEE

EERROKRMEERKRG 2 Es (&)
RARFBEREZIFE -

Name of director BEEEnlEA 2 BRESAR EEHE

Ms. CHAN So Kuen 10,000,000 PRE=IR LT

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 6,000,000 BEESE

Mr. WONG Yan Sang 5,000,000 E=CAELE
21,000,000

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2009, none of the directors had registered an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares” above and in the section
“Share option scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Further details of the
Scheme are disclosed in the note 29 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EERHEE

Share option scheme (continued)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

Number of share options

BT (F|)

TEHEBERNARFDRTREIEZ 8D

BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise price
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period of share
of participants 2008 the year the year the year 2009 share options of share options options
(note a) (note b)
SHEATHERER R=ZBENF R=ZZNE REBRE
+tA—H FRARL FRTE FREK AA=+H B BRET S BRETEE
(GEL) (Bt Eb)
HK$
per share
GRS T
Directors E%
Ms. CHAN So Kuen 332 - (332) - - 2 December 2003 2 December 2004 to 0.175
BRERL T —ET=F+=ZA=H 1 December 2013
“ETNFE+ZAZHE
—Z-=%+-HA—H
334 - (334) - - 2 December 2003 2 December 2006 to 0.175
—TE=F+=ZAH=H 1 December 2013
“EERETZAZHE
—T—=%+=ZAH—H
3,333,334 - (3,333,334) - - 2 December 2003 2 December 2008 to 0.175
—EE=F+-HZH 1 December 2013
“EEN\E+AZHZE
—T-=%t-A—H
2,000,000 = = = 2,000,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 0.530
—EELFLAMA ZZEENFLAMNAZE
—T—+tFtA=H
3,000,000 = = = 3,000,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 0.530
—EELFLAMA —ZT-TFLAMAE
—T—tFtHA=H
5,000,000 = = 5,000,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 0.530
—EELF L AMA —E-—FtAmAZE
—T—+tFtHA=H
13,334,000 = (3,334,000) = 10,000,000
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EERHEE

Share option scheme (continued) BERAESTE (F)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TEREEFARATDEITHERE 2 &8 : (8)
(continued)

Number of share options

BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise price
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period of share
of participants 2008 the year the year the year 2009 share options of share options options
(note a) (note b)
SEATHERER R-BBNE R=ZEhEF B BRE
+tA—-AH FREH FRTE FRRK AA=1+H B BRETES BRETEE
(Fi#Ea) (B D)
HK$
per share
FRAET
Directors =
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 1,200,000 = = = 1,200,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 0.530
EEERE T+ F+LHANA —EENFLAmNAZE
—T—+tFtHA=H
1,800,000 = = = 1,800,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 0.530
—TELF L AMA —E-TFLtAmAZRE
—T—+F+H=H
3,000,000 = - - 3,000,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 0.530
“TELF+LHAINA —E-—FtAmAZE
“T—+tFtHA=H
6,000,000 = = = 6,000,000
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EERHEE

Share option scheme (continued)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

(continued)

Number of share options

BB R #ESHE (&)

TEREBRFAARRCHETEREZ2E : (&)

BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise price
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period of share
of participants 2008 the year the year the year 2009 share options of share options options
(note a) (note b)
SEATHERER R-BBNE R=ZBENE B BRE
+tA—-A FREH FRTE FRRK AA=t+H =) BRETES BRETEE
(FiEa) (B D)
HK$
per share
FRAET
Directors =
Mr. WONG Yan Sang (note d) 1,000,000 = = = 1,000,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 0.530
B AKE (isd) “TELF+LHANA —EENELANBE
“T—+tFtHA=H
1,500,000 = = = 1,500,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 0.530
“EE+E+ANA —T-TFLHMAZE
—E—tFtH=H
2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 0.530
—ZETHELANA “E-——FtAmMBZE
e e =
5,000,000 = = = 5,000,000
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Share option scheme (continued)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

(continued)

Number of share options

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EERHEE

BRESTE (&)

TEREBRFAARRCHETEREZ2S : (&)

BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise price
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period of share
of participants 2008 the year the year the year 2009 share options of share options options
(note a) (note b)
SEATHERER R-BBNE R=ZEhEF B BRE
tA—H FREH FRTE FRRK AA=1+H =p-t] BRETES BRETEE
(Fi#Ea) (B D)
HK$
per share
SR
Other employees Eft{EE
In aggregate 1,332 - (332) - 1,000 2 December 2003 2 December 2004 to 0.175
& ZEE=F+ZACH 1 December 2013
—TTNE+_AZRAE
“Z—=%+=A—H
1,334 - (334) - 1,000 2 December 2003 2 December 2006 to 0.175
—EE=F+ZACH 1 December 2013
—EERETAZRE
—F-=%+=A—H
10,333,334 - (2,333,334) - 8,000,000 2 December 2003 2 December 2008 to 0.175
—EE=F+ZACH 1 December 2013
—TZN\F+-_AZRZE
“ZT—=%1+=-A—H
3,800,000 = = = 3,800,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 0.530
—ZEEELANA —ZEE\FLAMBE
—E—tFtH=H
5,700,000 = = = 5,700,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 0.530
—ZEEELANA —E-TELAMBE
—2—tFLA=A
9,500,000 = = = 9,500,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 0.530
T ELANA “E-—FtAMAZE

~F—tFLA=A
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EERHEE

Share option scheme (continued) B REST 8 (])
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TREBFARARIBEITHEREZEZS : (&)
(continued)

Number of share options

BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise price
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period of share
of participants 2008 the year the year the year 2009 share options of share options options
(note a) (note b)
SEATHEHER R=BENF R=ZBBNE RERE
tA—H FrE FRITHE FRZW AA=t+H =) BRETEE BRETEE
(Bft 5Fa) (Pit3Eb)
HK$
per share
SRAM T
Other employees Eft{EE
In aggregate 1,680,000 - - (240,000) 1,440,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2008 to 0.370
St 2T ET—ATNH 18 November 2017
—EENF+-ATNEE
—T—+F+—A+/N\R
2,520,000 = = (360,000) 2,160,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2009 to 0.370
2T E+—ATNA 18 November 2017
—ETNF+—ATNEE
“E—+tHF+—A+N\AH
4,200,000 = = (600,000) 3,600,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2010 to 0.370
2T E+—ATNA 18 November 2017
—Z-THE+—AThAE
—T—+F+—A+/N\R
240,000 = = = 240,000 28 January 2008 28 January 2009 to 0.355
—EE\F-RA=1+N\H 27 January 2018

ZEENE-AZ+/\BZE
- \F—RA=1++tH
360,000 - - - 360,000 28 January 2008 28 January 2010 to 0.355
—EE\F-RA=1+N\H 27 January 2018
—2-TF—A-{/\BE
- \F—A=1++tH
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Share option scheme (continued)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

(continued)

Number of share options

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EERHEE

BT & (&)
TEREBRFAARRCHETEREZ2S : (&)

BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise price
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period of share
of participants 2008 the year the year the year 2009 share options of share options options
(note a) (note b)
SEATHEHER R=BENF R=BENE RERE
tHA—H FREH FRITHE FRZW AA=t1H B BRETENE BRETEE
(Pft 5Fa) (Pt 5Fb)
HK$
per share
SR
Other employees Eft{EE
In aggregate 600,000 - - - 600,000 28 January 2008 28 January 2011 to 0.355
a4 —EENF—A=+/\H 27 January 2018
—F——#-A-t)\BZ
—F-\F-A=++H
1,200,000 = = = 1,200,000 26 March 2008 26 March 2009 to 0.357
—ZEN\F=ZA=+H 25 March 2018
“ETAFZA-TARE
—E-\&=A=+AH
1,800,000 = = = 1,800,000 26 March 2008 26 March 2011 to 0.357
—ZEN\F=ZA=+H 25 March 2018
B Il N
—F-/\f=A=+HhA
3,000,000 = = = 3,000,000 26 March 2008 26 March 2013 to 0.357
—ZEN\F=ZA=+H 25 March 2018
ZZ-=F=ZA=-t+HZE
—F-/\f=A=+H%A
= 840,000 = = 840,000 15 July 2008 15 July 2009 to 14 July 2018 0.333
—2E/\FLATEA “2TAFLATRAE
—E-N\FtA+EA
= 720,000 = = 720,000 15 July 2008 15 July 2010 to 14 July 2018 0.333
—ZEZ)\FtA+HHA “Z-THtATHAE
—E-N\FtATEA
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EERHEE

Share option scheme (continued)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

(continued)

Number of share options

BRERR

BT A (&)
TEREBRFAARRCHETEREZ2E : (&)

At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise price
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period of share
of participants 2008 the year the year the year 2009 share options of share options options
(note a) (note b)
SEATHEHER R=BENF R=ZBBNE RERE
tA—H FrE FRITHE FRZW AA=t1H =) BRETEE BRETEE
(Bft 5Fa) (Bit5Eb)
HK$
per share
SREBET
Other employees Eft{EE
In aggregate - 1,740,000 - - 1,740,000 15 July 2008 15 July 2011 to 14 July 2018 0.333
B —ZZ)\FtA+HhHHA “Z——H%tATHAE
—Z-\FtA+IHA
= 900,000 = = 900,000 15 July 2008 15 July 2013 to 14 July 2018 0.333
—ETN\FtA+AHA —E—=5tA+AHRZE
2\t A+HHA
= 600,000 = = 600,000 31 October 2008 31 October 2009 to 0.160
—2E\FTA=1T—H 30 October 2018
~FFAFHA=H-BE
—E—\&+A=+H
= 900,000 = = 900,000 31 October 2008 31 October 2011 to 0.160
—EENFTH=T—H 30 October 2018
—Z——4%+A=1+—H%
“Z-\Ft+A=1H
= 1,500,000 = = 1,500,000 31 October 2008 31 October 2013 to 0.160
“EE\FTA=1t—H 30 October 2018
—T-=FftA=1+—RH%
—Z-/\F+A=+H
44,936,000 7,200,000 (2,334,000) (1,200,000) 48,602,000
69,270,000 7,200,000 (5,668,000) (1,200,000) 69,602,000
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Share option scheme (continued)
Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year:

(@) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

(b) The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

(c) The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the exercise dates of the
share options was HK$0.174. The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the dates on
which the options were granted on 15 July 2008 and 31 October 2008 were HK$0.340 and HK$0.160,
respectively.

(d) Mr. WONG Yan Sang resigned as a director of the Company on 20 May 2009. All unexercised share options

held by him lapsed on 21 August 2009 in accordance with the scheme.

The directors have estimated the values of the share options granted during the year, calculated using the
trinomial option pricing model as at the date of grant of the options:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EERHEE

BT & (&)
F P i R AT {68 BB A D1 2R PR A

() BREARMAERLAHRAERTTRAMMBBERL

(b) FERRHE TR TR (IR L BATACR - AR FRA 2 E A48
BE T AR -

(© ARRRANP EHx AT B HIRT < i P WM (E AE#0.174
T ARBBROREZBEEE _TT/N\FLATABRR_FF
NE+A=+—B&RE BHE 2 WHED B REH0.3407T KB
0.1607T °

@) BCAXEER-TTAFEA-TEREAATNES  MEMS
B2 HAERTERREERERT R -TTAFN\A S+ —B%
2 -

EERACEANREERA G FAEREBERENELBHZE
B :

Number of options Theoretical value
granted during the year of share options
FRERBERESA B 2w EE
HK$'000
Grantee BT S UN
Other employees 7,200,000 998 Hftg &
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EERHEE

Share option scheme (continued)

The trinomial model is a generally accepted method of valuing options, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The significant assumptions used in the calculation of the
values of the share options were risk-free interest rate, expected life of options, expected volatility and expected
dividend. The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that
the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. The
measurement dates used in the valuation calculations were the dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the trinomial model are subject to certain fundamental limitations,
due to the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the expected future
performance input to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself.

The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change to the
variables used may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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Substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and underlying shares

At 30 June 2009, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital and share options of the
Company were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EERHEE

FTERRRROREBEKRG 2R

RZZZAFAA=ZTH ARFAEREBZFRBEERIIEIB6HEFEL
BEELMBETR  THALTRARREBITRARBRETEF%K
WA s

Long positions: HE -
Percentage of
Number of ordinary the Company’s Number of share
Name Capacity and nature of interest shares held issued shares options held
EARR BB BT
e S RERtEE P imAR e g A B DL FFsfE IR SR
Mr. LAW Ka Sing Directly beneficially owned
BRELE BERERES 1,093,091,098 68.58 =

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2009, no person, other than the directors of the Company, whose
interests are also set out in the section “Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares” above, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficiency of public float
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of the Company
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

B EXPIEEEREIESENRO RABRN Z#s ] —SME AR A
BEx RN RZZEZENFSA=ZTHE  BEALTRARFT KRG
RN G - BERERES M EGRIIFE3365T ALz #am ok

o
B o

NBEREZEHAM
RBARBAIABEZ ARERERESMAE  REARER - 2R A
THROFBEARRF D EITRABE25%

BE BORHEAXAQXFA LHES

ARAREAEMH B R DRAEE N EEBE « 1 ERBE AR AEF
FmES -
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Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further details of these
transactions are included in note 35 to the financial statements.

(a) Property leasing

The Group entered into two tenancy agreements with Laws International Group Limited (“Laws
International”) and with Bright City International Limited (“Bright City”) on 1 August 2005 in connection
with the rental of a warehouse and the head office, respectively. Certain directors of Laws International and
Bright City, who have beneficial equity interests therein, are relatives of Mr. LAW Ka Sing, a director and
substantial shareholder of the Company. Laws International transferred its ownership of the warehouse
to Bright City on 18 August 2005. The rental periods of both tenancy agreements for the rental of the
warehouse and the head office are two years commencing from 1 August 2005 and expiring on 31 July
2007 and three years commencing from 1 August 2005 and expiring on 31 July 2008, respectively. On
31 July 2007, the Group renewed its tenancy agreement with Bright City for the rental of the warehouse
for another two years commencing from 1 August 2007 and expiring on 31 July 2009. On 25 July 2008,
the Group renewed its tenancy agreement with Bright City for the rental of the head office for six months
commencing from 1 August 2008 and expiring on 31 January 2009. The rentals were determined by
reference to open market rents at the inception of the tenancy agreements.

(b) Purchase of garments

On 7 February 2007, the Group renewed a purchase agreement with Laws International (the “Purchase
Agreement”) which was effective from 1 April 2007 to 30 June 2009 for the purchases of garments
from Laws International and its subsidiaries. Certain directors of Laws International and its subsidiaries,
who have beneficial equity interests therein, are relatives of Mr. LAW Ka Sing, a director and substantial
shareholder of the Company. According to the Purchase Agreement, the annual values of the purchases
of garments from Laws International and its subsidiaries by the Group for the period from 1 April 2007 to
30 June 2007 and each of the two financial years ending 30 June 2009 will not exceed HK$74,000,000,
HK$287,000,000 and HK$345,000,000, respectively. On 11 May 2009, the Group renewed its purchase
agreement with a subsidiary of Laws International, Sky Dragon International Industrial Limited, for
purchases of garments for the period from 1 July 2009 to 30 June 2012. The prices of the products are to
be determined by reference to the prevailing market prices.
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Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions (continued)

(b) Purchase of garments (continued)
The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in relation to the purchases of garments set out above and have confirmed that these
continuing connected transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available from independent suppliers; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant Purchase Agreement and on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company have further confirmed the values of purchases of
garments from Laws International and its subsidiaries by the Group for the year ended 30 June 2009 did
not exceed HK$345,000,000.

Auditors
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHAN So Kuen
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
22 October 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT B #Z% HEMREE

Elf ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

To the shareholders of Bossini International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Bossini International Holdings Limited set out on pages 64 to
156, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 30 June 2009, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT B #Z HMBEE

Auditors’ responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 30 June 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ERNST & YOUNG
Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

22 October 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT #& Wz &
Year ended 30 June 2009 HE—ZEZNFSA=THILEE
Notes 2009 2008
in HK$ thousand Bt &£ —EBEENE —ETENF BET T
REVENUE 5 2,254,126 2,316,869 U 2
Cost of sales (1,141,484) (1,147,017) HE KA
GROSS PROFIT 1,112,642 1,169,852 £
Other income 5 13,481 11,017 HAA
Selling and distribution costs (779,144) (793,917) SHE KD SHAKA
Administrative expenses (235,799) (256,133) THHAX
Other operating expenses (51,368) (41,091) HiEERY
PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 59,812 89,728 4 08 2 R A
Finance costs 6 (2,707) (2,204) b & B
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 57,105 87,524 BRFi A E F
Tax 10 (6,853) (23,949) BiIE
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE AATERBFEA
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 11 50,252 63,575 FE 1k & A B R
DIVIDENDS 12 RE
Interim 15,939 = Fh Hf
Proposed final 15,939 15,882 N
31,878 15,882
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE APAEBEREFEEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EaERER
OF THE COMPANY 13
Basic HK 3.16 centsi&{ll HK 4.01 centsi& Il 8N
Diluted HK 3.15 centsi&{l  HK 3.98 centsit ] 5
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET GRE8E8ESE

30June 2009 —EENFRA=1+H

Notes 2009 2008
in HK$ thousand [{hE=s —EERE —EENF AT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment 14 178,464 175,767 Y% - B kG
Trademark 15 1,164 1,164 PR
Deferred tax assets 27 3,290 2,848 FEEFIAE EE
Deposits paid 19 62,967 68,430 [=ANE &
Total non-current assets 245,885 248,209 EREBEELE
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 17 280,987 230,056 FE
Debtors 18 55,143 62,519 JE s BR 3R
Bills receivable 9,783 4,923 R E R
Deposits paid 19 33,934 26,234 EftiEE
Prepayments and other receivables 20 43,250 29,167 T8 A~ 5 I8 B A i FE W AR 18
Tax recoverable 269 134 A U B 7 3K
Pledged bank deposits 21 1,486 1,615 BEMRRITEX
Cash and cash equivalents 21 340,774 308,688 ReEMRBEEFMEIEE
Total current assets 765,626 663,336 MEVEEBE
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET S8 8EAEBE

30June 2009 —EEZNFNA=1H

Notes 2009 2008
in HK$ thousand B sE —EBEENE —ETNF BT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade creditors, other payables and accruals 22 185,067 180,569 FERTRR R « oAb FE A 3B R FE AT R IE
Bills payable 4,837 7,836 e =%
Tax payable 50,640 48,973 JE 87 5K
Due to related companies 23 9,206 4,820 JE 1~ B3~ B FRIE
Derivative financial instruments 24 3,265 4,382 PTESRT A
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 25 77,621 - STRIBITER
Provision 26 6,584 7,169 B iE
Total current liabilities 337,220 253,749 mEAEEE
NET CURRENT ASSETS 428,406 409,587 mEBEERE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 674,291 657,796 BRRBAEREEAE
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities 27 1,531 2,754 FEEFRIBEAE
Net assets 672,760 655,042 BEZE
EQUITY =
Issued capital 28 159,392 158,825 B EBITIRAR
Reserves 30(a) 497,429 480,335 &
Proposed final dividend 12 15,939 15,882 R R B AR B
Total equity 672,760 655,042 EmiEE
CHAN So Kuen FR & 18 MAK Tak Cheong Edmund ZZ &
Director Z % Director %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZRERHZZEHR*K

Year ended 30 June 2009 HE-TZNFAA=+HILFE

Share Share Capital ~ Contributed Asset Exchange Reserve Proposed
Issued premium option reserve surplus  revaluation fluctuation funds Retained final Total
Notes capital account reserve (note a) (note b) reserve reserve (note ¢) profits dividend equity
in HK$ thousand BT &5 fE R E ERf#E HBABHK EE HMNERED HEES Hk
AT T M A i (8 iR i (FiEa) (Bd7ED) Hihf#E & (Bt ) R ER Al RERE B iaE
At 1 July 2008
RZZEZENF+A—H 158,825 4,678 6,808 (4,987) 90,258 10,359 27,996 1,798 343,425 15,882 655,042

Realisation on depreciation
RrERER - - - - - (578) - - 578 - -
Deferred tax relating to revaluation

of leasehold land and buildings

BEEE LI REF LRERIE 27 = = = - - 95 - - - - 95
Exchange realignment
5 B - - - = - - @ - - N :72)

Total income and expense for the
year recognised directly in equity

BERERERZFNEREHE - - - - - (483) (4,972) = 578 - (4,877)
Profit for the year
FREF - - - - - - - - 50,252 = 50,252
Total income and expense for the year
FRERESR - - - - - (483) (4,972) - 50,830 = 45,375
Final 2008 dividend declared

EERZZEZNERKE - - - - - - - - - (15,882  (15,882)
Interim 2009 dividend
ZETNEFRERE 12 - - - - = - - - (15,939 - (15,939)
Proposed final 2009 dividend
BK—ZEZNFRERS 12 = = = = = = = - (159390 15,939 =
Exercise of share options
1T{E BB RS AE 28 567 828 (402) - - - - - - - 993
Equity-settled share option arrangements
BEEEERET 29 = = 3,171 = = = = = = = 3,171
At 30 June 2009

“ETNFAA=ZTH 159,392 5,506* 9,577* (4,987)*  90,258* 9,876*  23,024* 1,798* 362,377* 15939 672,760
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #reRm& iRk

Year ended 30 June 2009 HE—ZTNFNA=+HIEFE

Share Share Capital ~ Contributed Asset Exchange Reserve Proposed
Issued premium option reserve surplus  revaluation fluctuation funds Retained final Total
Notes capital account reserve (note a) (note b) reserve reserve (note ¢) profits dividend equity
in HK$ thousand BT & 1n fERRE EARfHE HARK V3 SN B HEES R
AT T M &7 i (8 iR i (BT (Bd5ED) Hihf#E & (Bl &) REEM RERE B iaE
At 1 July 2007
R_EZ+F+A—H 157,458 2,682 1,784 (4,987) 90,258 10,712 21,698 1,798 295,154 - 576,557

Realisation on depreciation
RITEREH - - - - - (578) - - 578 - -
Deferred tax relating to revaluation

of leasehold land and buildings

EREE LM REF 2 BTEHIA 27 = = = = = 225 = = = = 225
Exchange realignment
BEE 34, 2 - - - - - - 6,298 - - - 6,298

Total income and expense for the
year recognised directly in equity

BEENERER FRRBREE - - - - - (353) 6,298 - 578 - 6,523

Profit for the year

FRE A - - - - - - - - 63,575 - 63,575

Total income and expense for the year

FREREH - - - - - (353) 6,298 - 64,153 - 70,098

Proposed final 2008 dividend

Bk _—TT \FRBRE 12 - - - - - - - - (15,882 15,882 -

Exercise of share options

1T RE A 28 1,367 1,996 (971) - - - - - - - 2,392

Equity-settled share option arrangements

RREEBRER 29 - - 5,995 - - - - - - - 5,995

At 30 June 2008

RZZEENFAA=TH 158,825 4,678* 6,808* (4,987)*  90,258* 10,359*  27,996* 1,798*  343,425* 15,882 655,042

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$497,429,000 (2008: HK$480,335,000) in the * WERERBEESIINGABERABRAZLA HEBK497,429,0007T (=
consolidated balance sheet. T )\F : #5#480,335,0007T) °

Notes: B 5E

(@) The capital reserve of the Group represents goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years. (@ AEBZERNRERBEFEWENBARIMEEZEHE -

(b) The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value of the share capital issued (b) XEBZHABRABARABEETZRAAEAREARGARMR —AN=
by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and the share premium account of the subsidiaries acquired FLHAREEREAMBKBHBRARZBRARRND EBRAE =
pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1993. o

(©) In accordance with the financial regulations applicable in Mainland China, a portion of the profits of a subsidiary in (0 MEBEEANPBREKEZMBEHED  HPEKE—MBARZHBHOENE S
Mainland China has been transferred to the reserve funds which are restricted as to use. BEERHAR 2 HEES -
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

GERERER

Year ended 30 June 2009 HE —ZZTNFENA=THILFE

Notes 2009 2008
in HK$ thousand M5 —EEAE —TEENF BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEXBZRERE
Profit before tax 57,105 87,524 Bk 7 B 4 A
Adjustments for: TR
Finance costs 6 2,707 2,204 Bl & AR
Interest income 5 (3,909) (4,308) MEUA
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventory 7 6,384 (7,236) FEREE (BERR)
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, & MEE - BB REE
plant and equipment 7 2,150 8,155 BRZEE
Fair value losses/(gains), net on derivative TEemITAZATE
financial instruments — transactions not FER ()
qualifying as hedges 7 (1,929) 7,983 —TREEHEBNR S
Depreciation 7 79,547 77,675 e
Equity-settled share option expense 7 3,171 5,995 WS EEBRER Y
Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of debtors 7 (118) 99 FEUWBRFURE, CRERR)
145,108 178,091
Decrease/(increase) in inventories (55,659) 81,000 FERL,(Em)
Decrease in debtors 8,071 7,353 JE UK BR SR
Decrease/(increase) in bills receivable (4,849) 830 FEUR ZHE5m A>, (3E0)
Increase in deposits paid (1,794) (8,663) [RENE 5l
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and TE AT R IE K A b FE UL
other receivables (13,951) 32,728 BRI A (3 0)
Increase/(decrease) in trade creditors, FEATRR R« E b FE <RI &
other payables and accruals 3,119 (4,101) FESTERIEIE AN, CRlA)
Decrease in bills payable (2,999) (15,614) FEf ZBR A
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due FE 8 & A A
to related companies 4,386 (14,738) FIBE I, CRA)
Increase/(decrease) in derivative TESMT A
financial instruments 812 (4,455) #n, Csd)
Cash generated from operations 82,244 252,431 LEXEBMSZRE
Interest paid (2,707) (2,204) ERHE
Hong Kong profits tax paid (5,306) (3,062) ENBEEREH
Overseas taxes paid (1,633) (3,139) BAEINEIR
Net cash inflow from operating activities 72,598 244,026 LB ZIREMAFE
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended 30 June 2009 HE_ZZNFENA=+HILEE

GREREERER

Notes 2009 2008
in HK$ thousand Bt 5 —EEAE —ET)N\F BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHZRERE
Interest received 3,909 4,308 EAE
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment 14 (88,003) (85,493) BEYE BERZEEE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEYWHE  BERZEERB
plant and equipment 639 6,575 Fr8 0 IE
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged bank deposits with BERRTE A
original maturity of more than three months HBR=EAz
when acquired (36,000) 15,600 EEFRITEFORLD (3G 0)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BERRERHA
with original maturity of more than HBB={EHz
three months when acquired 708 - BERBRITETRD
Net cash outflow from investing activities (118,747) (59,010) KBRS RS F5E
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHRERE
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise RITEREREMEITRD 2
of share options 28 993 2,392 P15 3/ I8
Dividends paid (31,821) - BEAERE
New bank loans 211,249 44,633 AR IRITE
Repayment of bank loans (133,628) (44,633) BERITER
Net cash inflow from financing activities 46,793 2,392 MEEB 2 RERAFHE
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 644 187,408 RekASESEEB 2FEM
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 309,510 115,926 FUzReRkREEFEEE
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (3,894) 6,176 INERMEREB B - FHE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 306,260 309,510 FRZATRASEHEER
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRALEHEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS EER D AT
Cash and bank balances 21 304,613 286,869 e MIRTTAERR
Non-pledged bank deposits with original maturity BEKREINHALKR=EAZ
of less than three months when acquired 21 161 21,819 EIEAIRITER
Pledged bank deposits with original maturity BRERREINHALKR=FEAZ
of less than three months when acquired 21 1,486 822 BHIRMRITER
306,260 309,510
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BALANCE SHEET BEE&ER

30June 2009 —EENFRA=1+H

Notes 2009 2008
in HK$ thousand [{hE=s —EERE —EENF BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries 16 143,162 143,162 RSB AR ZKE
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries 16 207,803 201,310 JE UL T 1B A ) FRIE
Prepayments 20 199 211 TR FRIE
Cash and cash equivalents 21 442 1,173 RekReEEEE
Total current assets 208,444 202,694 MEEERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals 22 2,733 1,891 E th JE A< RRIE R B AT AR IR
Tax payable 638 - FERT B R

3,371 1,891

NET CURRENT ASSETS 205,073 200,803 REEEFE
Net assets 348,235 343,965 BEFE
EQUITY Ea
Issued capital 28 159,392 158,825 BEITRA
Reserves 30(b) 172,904 169,258 w1
Proposed final dividend 12 15,939 15,882 R R BARR B
Total equity 348,235 343,965 EmiaE

CHAN So Kuen B & 1§
Director Z %

MAK Tak Cheong Edmund & &
Director &%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R & Hi st

30June 2009 —EZNFNA=1H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
Bossini International Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda. Its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in investment holding and the retailing, distribution
and wholesaling of garments.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “"HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for derivative financial instruments which have been measured
at fair value, and certain land and buildings as further explained in note 2.4 below. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year then ended. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All income, expenses and unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intercompany transactions and intercompany balances within the Group are eliminated on
consolidation in full.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& R &R Kzt

30June 2009 —EENFRA=1+H

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 22 FEMREETEBNBEREN 2ZE
The Group has adopted the following new interpretations and amendments to HKFRSs for the first time for REBERANFE 2 MBHREEXRA T FBEGRERE MG
the current year’s financial statements. Except for in certain cases, giving rise to new and revised accounting MERAER ZMEE] o BB T3l BUME KRBT ST EUOR 21BN« £
policies, the adoption of these new interpretations and amendments has had no significant effect on these MEEFHEARERETHEMBRRNEEATE -

financial statements.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Amendments to HKAS 39 — Financial Instruments: Recognition and BEEFERE9 K BT ENEIOR 2B M LA  HERH
Amendments Measurement and HKFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures - BAEERER FTERB S BIERERE TR 2B —
Reclassification of Financial Assets FTH 2] PRTA RE-2REEZEH 8
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 — Reassessment of Embedded &4 (BRyKERRE F5EARVEERRERZES)-RE
HKAS 39 Amendments Derivatives and HKAS 39 — Financial Instruments: Recognition Z88)-RBEIRR FOR 2R —EFAHEHEARITET
and Measurement — Embedded Derivatives BESFIERE3957 ARBB S ENER 2B -—2#
(B4E3T) TA: #BRARFE-HAAITETLR
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements BE(BENBERRE BEFTEZZH
ZEE)-REF125
HK(FRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes BE(BBEIBERRE AAFFERTE
ZEE)-REFI13N
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding B (BRMBERRR BB EAE 195 - REBEFEES
Requirements and their Interaction Z8E)-RBE14R RE - RIEESEKRWE G EFE
The principal effects of adopting these new interpretations and revised HKFRSs are as follows: RMZEFRMARBREEBAVBEREN 2 FTEZZEMT :
(a) Amendments to HKAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and HKFRS Q) BB EREE BT 2T E: #FHEFERE
7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Reclassification of Financial Assets B KERERNEIR 2B —2ATE HE-—LHEE
ZEHFRHE
The amendments to HKAS 39 permit an entity to reclassify a non-derivative financial asset classified as EBSEHEREINNE VB N ERAEFAETERNNIER
held for trading, other than a financial asset designated by an entity as at fair value through profit or T BB EEENIETESREE (R AEREERZE
loss upon initial recognition, out of the fair value through profit or loss category if the financial asset is e E A AN L EREZREENSREERBRIN iR
no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, if specified criteria are met. BERIERESEMNEREY AR SmEETHENEN
B EEEREMMEFE -
A debt instrument that would have met the definition of loans and receivables (if it had not been HEEFMEKEFEEZNER LA (RN E X HEREARE
required to be classified as held for trading at initial recognition) may be classified out of the fair BRSO EARBEES) IR AFENIBSES BRI (1N
value through profit or loss category or (if it had not been designated as available for sale) may be AWEEATHEE) R AHEEEREFS EEER L EL
classified out of the available-for-sale category to the loans and receivables category if the entity has BEZHER - IR R B S R A N EBRERIEEZE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& sk R HizE

30June 2009 —EENFA=1+H

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and HKFRS
7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Reclassification of Financial Assets (continued)

In rare circumstances, financial assets that are not eligible for classification as loans and receivables
may be transferred from the held-for-trading category to the available-for-sale category or to the held-
to-maturity category (in the case of a debt instrument), if the financial asset is no longer held for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

The financial asset shall be reclassified at its fair value on the date of reclassification and the fair
value of the financial asset on the date of reclassification becomes its new cost or amortised cost, as
applicable. The amendments to HKFRS 7 require extensive disclosures of any financial asset reclassified
in the situations described above. The amendments are effective from 1 July 2008.

As the Group has not reclassified any of its financial instruments, the amendments have had no impact
on the financial position or results of operations of the Group.

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 — Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives and HKAS 39 —
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement — Embedded Derivatives

The amendments to HKAS 39 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 require an entity to assess whether to separate
an embedded derivative from a host contract in the case where the entity reclassifies a hybrid
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category. Such assessment shall be made
either when the entity first became a party to the contract or when a change in the terms of the
contract significantly modifies expected cash flows. At the Group has no embedded derivatives, the
amendments have had no impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Group.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(0

(d)

(e)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 - Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 applies to service concession operators and explains how to account for obligation
undertaken and the rights received in service concession arrangements. No member of the Group is
an operator and, therefore, this interpretation has had no impact on the financial position or results
of the operations of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 — Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires that customer loyalty award credits granted to customers as part of a sales
transaction are to be accounted for as a separate component of the sales transaction in which they
are granted. The consideration received in the sales transaction is allocated between the loyalty award
credits and the other components of the sale. The amount allocated to the loyalty award credits is
determined by reference to their fair value and is deferred until the awards are redeemed or the liability
is otherwise extinguished. The adoption of this interpretation has had no significant effect on these
financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 — HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit under HKAS 19 Employee Benefits, on the amount
of a refund or a reduction in future contributions in relation to a defined benefit scheme that can
be recognised as an asset, including situations when a minimum funding requirement exists. As the
Group's defined benefit scheme does not have a minimum funding requirement, the interpretation has
had no effect on these financial statements.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R R K=t

22 FEMGERIETE B IEERLER
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30June 2009 —EENFRA=1+H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& 3R & i &t

30June 2009 —EEZNFNA=1H

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
Amendments

HKFRS 1 (Revised)
HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 2 Amendments
HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 8
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Presentation of Financial Statements'
Borrowing Costs'
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements?

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation and
HKAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements — Puttable Financial

Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation’

Amendment to HKAS 39 — Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement — Eligible Hedged ltems?

Amendments to HKFRS 1 — First-time Adoption of HKFRSs and
HKAS 27 — Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
— Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate'

First-time Adoption of HKFRSs?

Amendments to HKFRS 1 — Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters’

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations'

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions ’

Business Combinations?

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosure —
Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments'

Operating Segments'
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate'
HK(FRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation®
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers*

Annual improvement project Improvements to HKFRSs*>"

Annual improvement project Improvements to HKFRSs 2009°""

ooos W -

* %

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

Effective for transfers of assets from customers received on or after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 except the amendment to HKFRS 5 which is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009, 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate

Effective for annual periods ending on or after 1 January 2010

Improvements to HKFRSs contains amendments to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 8, HKAS 10, HKAS 16, HKAS
18, HKAS 19, HKAS 20, HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28, HKAS 29, HKAS 31, HKAS 34, HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS
39, HKAS 40 and HKAS 41.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 contains amendments to HKFRS 2, HKFRS 5, HKFRS 8, HKAS 1, HKAS 7, HKAS 17,
HKAS 18, HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS 39, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 23 CEMEMARENMCEBUBERER 2L (F)

STANDARDS (continued)

In October 2008 and May 2009, the HKICPA issued its Improvements to HKFRSs and Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 which set out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. There are separate transitional provisions
for each standard.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs
upon initial application. So far, it has concluded that while the adoption of HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1 (Revised)
may result in new or amended disclosures and the adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may result in changes in
accounting policies, these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's
results of operations and financial position.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly,
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income statement to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired,
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated reserves

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 30 “Business
Combinations” (“SSAP 30”) in 2001, goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against consolidated
capital reserve and consolidated retained profits in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3,
such goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated capital reserve and consolidated retained profits
and is not recognised in the income statement when all or part of the business to which the goodwill
relates is disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in
use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill
and certain financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or
is under common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in

(d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase
in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and
equipment and where the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

The asset revaluation reserve arising from the revaluation of property, plant and equipment is realised
and transferred directly to retained profits on a systematic basis, as the corresponding asset is used by the
Group. The amount realised is the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of the asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover an impairment loss, on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to the income statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the income statement to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained
profits is made for the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of an
asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant
portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained
profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost or valuation of each item of
property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings 2% to 4% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter
Plant and machinery 9% to 25%

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter
Motor vehicles 15% to 33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost or valuation
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least
at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under such operating leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case
of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Group
assesses whether a contract contains an embedded derivative when the Group first becomes a party to it
and assesses whether an embedded derivative is required to be separated from the host contract when
the analysis shows that the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely
related to those of the host contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and, where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.

All reqular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments or financial guarantee contracts. Gains or losses on these financial assets
are recognised in the income statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the income statement
does not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008/09 ##

24 TESTBERHME (&)

RERHMEMEE

BREAGHENEORBEN L EREES D B RRAFER
BaERIRcEREE  BERMBYERR  HE22HRA ZKE R
HEEZERMEE (WER) - ESREENIRERE - RAFER
B ROYFRATFERBERIIRZERE  SNEREERZE
REHE - EAEEERKBANZ—HK  AREEFHAORE
BEABRATETE  REZSTRARIARAITET A Z LB
NERET A K 2 R D Y EEYIBER - SHE RS AR AR
APTETREIBANONFIIE - EERENEFTNEHEEKNE
HANETHRNRERERTSETERNME -

EOREREL AEEBETEEREEZNE  YHEAFKE
BRT  EREREMNGERETE -

Bk

Z

NERTABEREESREE R 5 AETHER  XZHA
AEEAGBENHEEEZRS - UFRITABERLERER
EEEEMST ZRKENBFOEZHNEARNEEZERE

L FERE ,
RAFERBZEEREYE

SHEREEE REATEREERIEZ SRHEE - NBEENS
BERUNEHEELSEN  BIDBARIEES - TETA (BB
BMAXTETLR) THEARBIEEE  BRIERZFIEETABRY
FPTEASNBEEREY ZSERMEEZRBRIRGERNER - &
HRABERZ A EF BRI RO S I 5 E =T HRI 2 I8
HFE - R ER B F B TR A T A [k es R 2 R R -




2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial assets may be designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment
that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (i) the assets are part of a group of financial assets which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the
financial asset contains an embedded derivative that would need to be separately recorded.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by
reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date. For investments
where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation technigues. Such techniques
include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESTHEME (&)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through the
use of an allowance account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to debtors, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor) that
the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of an invoice. The
carrying amount of the debtors is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are
derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

e the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and has either (a) transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except that in the
case of a written put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at
fair value, the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the
transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESTHEME (&)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-bearing bank borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade creditors and other payables, amounts due to related companies and
interest-bearing bank borrowings are initially stated at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. The related interest expense is
recognised within “finance costs” in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the income statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the income statement
does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment
that would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on a
different basis; (i) the liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management strategy;
or (iii) the financial liability contains an embedded derivative that would need to be separately recorded.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts to hedge its risks
associated with foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair
value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are taken directly to the income statement.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by reference to current forward exchange rates
for contracts with similar maturity profiles.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis and includes all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESTHEME (&)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present value at the
balance sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase
in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in “finance costs” in
the income statement.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement, or in
equity if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, in the period in which the services are rendered;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset;

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms; and

(e) royalty income, on a time proportion basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Dividends
Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate allocation of retained profits within
the equity section of the balance sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised
as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company’s memorandum,
articles of association and bye-laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

In situations where equity instruments are issued and some or all of the goods or services received by the
Group as consideration cannot be specifically identified, the unidentifiable goods or services are measured
as the difference between the fair value of the share-based payment and the fair value of any identifiable
goods or services received at the grant date.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair values are determined using appropriate option pricing models, further
details of which are given in note 29 to the financial statements. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of
the Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which
the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is
conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESTBERHME (&)
Employee benefits (continued) EEEF (&)
Share-based payment transactions (continued) KRGS B35 (E)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the
terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification, which increases
the total fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in respect of equity-settled awards and has
applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not vested by 1
April 2005 and to those granted on or after 1 April 2005.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their employment contracts on a calendar
year basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the balance sheet date is
permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An accrual
is made at the balance sheet date for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the year
by the employees and carried forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes

The Group operates two pension schemes in Hong Kong, namely a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme as defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO
Scheme”), for all of its employees in Hong Kong.

Under the MPF Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ relevant income with a maximum monthly
contribution of HK$1,000 per employee are made by each of the employer and the employees. The
employer contributions are charged to the income statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Under the ORSO Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ basic salaries are made by the employer
and are charged to the income statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
ORSO Scheme. The rates of contributions made by the employees are either 0% or 5% of the salary of
each employee at the discretion of the employee. When an employee leaves the ORSO Scheme prior to his/
her interest in the Group’s employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group may be reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited contributions.

The assets of the MPF and ORSO Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the income statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Singapore participate in a Central Provident Fund Scheme which is a
contribution plan established by the Central Provident Fund Board in Singapore.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes (continued)

The Group operates two pension schemes in Taiwan under the Labour Standards Law (the "’Old Scheme”)
and under the Labour Pension Act which became effective on 1 July 2005 (the “"New Scheme”). Under the
Old Scheme, the Taiwan Branch of one of the Company’s subsidiaries makes regular contributions to the
Old Scheme to meet its employees’ retirement and termination benefits. Currently, the contributions have
been approved to be made at 2% of the employees’ total salaries. The fund is administered by a committee
and is deposited in the committee’s name with a government approved financial institution, Central Trust
of China, which acts as the trustee. Under the New Scheme, the Taiwan Branch and a Taiwan subsidiary
contribute each month 6% of the salaries of the employees who choose to participate in the New Scheme,
and deposit these amounts into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance.

The Company’s subsidiary in Malaysia participates in a state pension scheme, the Employees Provident
Fund, and contributions are based on 12% of the employees’ gross salaries.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the income statement in the period in which they are
incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS 39 are accounted for as financial liabilities. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of the financial guarantee contract, except when such contract is recognised
at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Loyalty programme

The Group operates loyalty programmes which allows customers to accumulate points when they purchase
products from the Group. The points can then be redeemed for free gifts, cash coupons and entitled to
additional discounts and renewal of VIP cards, subject to a minimum number of points being obtained.

The consideration received is allocated between the products sold and the points issued, with the
consideration allocated to the points being equal to their fair value. Fair value is determined by applying
statistical techniques.

The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue when the points are redeemed.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESTHEME (&)

Foreign currencies (continued) HhitE (48)
The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. AT EINMBARZNEEMIWIEE T - NEERR  EHER
As at the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation BEHBE REEAZEXRBRELSARNRZEREE  HlaR

currency of the Company at exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and their income statements
are translated into Hong Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are included in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised
in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset value has
not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Provision for inventories

Management reviews the ageing analysis of inventories of the Group at each balance sheet date, and
makes provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for
sale. The assessment of the provision amount required involves management judgements and estimates.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the original estimate, such differences
will have an impact on the carrying value of the inventories and provision charge/write-back of provision
in the period in which such estimate has been changed. In addition, physical count on all inventories is
carried out on a periodical basis in order to determine whether provision need to be made in respect of any
obsolete inventories identified. The Group carries out an inventory review at each balance sheet date and
makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving items. Management reassesses the estimation on each
of the balance sheet date. The directors of the Company are satisfied that sufficient provision for obsolete
and slow-moving inventories has been made in the consolidated financial statements. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s inventories as at 30 June 2009 was HK$280,987,000 (2008: HK$230,056,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the asset. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the asset and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of the Group's property, plant and equipment
as at 30 June 2009 was HK$178,464,000 (2008: HK$175,767,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The amounts
of unrecognised tax losses for subsidiaries situated in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan at 30
June 2009 were HK$9,857,000 (2008: HK$18,473,000), HK$5,816,000 (2008: HK$13,520,000) and
HK$73,481,000 (2008: HK$65,040,000), respectively. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it
is not considered probable that taxable profit will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Further details are contained in note 27 to the financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of geographical segment as the primary segment. In determining
the Group’s geographical segments, revenue and results are attributed to the segments based on the
location of assets.

Since all of the Group’s revenue, results and assets and liabilities are derived from the retailing and

distribution of garments, no separate analysis of financial information by business segment is presented in
these financial statements.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. DEER (E\)
Group -]
Geographical segments i |
The following tables present revenue, profit and certain asset, liability and expenditure information for the TREVNAEEEZE_ZEZNEFRZZEZENFAA=THIEFER
Group's geographical segments for the years ended 30 June 2009 and 2008. WS EzWE  mAMRETEE BERRAZER -
Hong Kong Mainland China Taiwan Singapore and Malaysia Consolidated
& B A BE =) 5N % S SR 2R )

in HK$ thousand 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
BETT 25 %3 —TTN\F —ZZTNE T N\F —EThF —TTN\F “EEAF —TTN\F “EEAF —TTN\F
Segment revenue:
pak 16

Sales to external customers 1,279,157 1,291,005 467,885 446,765 275,309 323,073 231,775 256,026 2,254,126 2,316,869

HE THNEEE

Other income

HA A 3,735 3,177 4,566 1,515 1,248 1,712 23 305 9,572 6,709
Total
HEt 1,282,892 1,294,182 472,451 448,280 276,557 324,785 231,798 256,331 2,263,698 2,323,578
Segment results
PAEES 124,212 139,893 (34,268) (37,637) (21,992) (15,731) (12,049) (1,105) 55,903 85,420
Interest income
FESBA 3,909 4,308
Profit from operating activities
EEEB RN 59,812 89,728
Finance costs
A& AR (2,707) (2,204)
Profit before tax
BR A5 A A 57,105 87,524
Tax
HIA (6,853) (23,949)
Profit for the year
F A& A 50,252 63,575
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical segments (continued)

4. ZEEHR (F)
i35 o5 8 ()

Hong Kong Mainland China Taiwan Singapore and Malaysia Consolidated
] B K BE =) N & B R R SE

in HK$ thousand 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2009 2008
BT —EThEF —ETNF —EZhEF —ETN\F —EEhF —ETN\F —EThF —EThF —ETN\F
Segment assets
DEEE 589,456 514,233 237,304 182,772 81,455 118,785 99,737 1,007,952 908,563
Unallocated assets
ADEEE 3,559 2,982
Total assets
BEE 1,011,511 911,545
Segment liabilities
DEAE 103,782 99,360 74,168 65,460 24,109 32,416 6,900 208,959 204,776
Unallocated liabilities
ANELAE 129,792 51,727
Total liabilities
BEE 338,751 256,503
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. 7EER (&)
Geographical segments (continued) i35 5 38 (48)
Hong Kong Mainland China Taiwan Singapore and Malaysia Consolidated
i) hE KB =) | 03K K 5B R R e

in HK$ thousand 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
AT T —EThE —ZTN\F —EThE —ZTN\F —ZZhE ZZTN\EF —ZZhE —TTNEF —ZEZhE ZTTNE
Other segment information:
HitHEEH

Capital expenditure

BARX 46,065 30,582 27,205 32,773 3,596 11,458 11,137 10,680 88,003 85,493

Depreciation

e 38,348 38,478 22,267 21,305 9,282 8,433 9,650 9,459 79,547 77,675

Loss on disposal/write-
off of items of property,
plant and equipment
HE MENE - BER
RIEEB ZBE 3 858 482 5,843 975 1,424 352 30 2,150 8,155

Provision/(write-back
of provision) for inventory
FERE/ (BERE) (1,881) (55) 6,490 (4,814) 1,767 (4,026) 8 1,659 6,384 (7,236)

Impairment/(write-back
of impairment) of debtors
FEW R ZORE, (R E
#&m) - - (125) 99 - - 7 = (118) 99
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WEREMEKA
Group £8
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the aggregate of the net invoiced value of goods Wt (MAIAEE 2588 DGR EERERTHRCEEREH
sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts, and the rendering of services, but excludes intra- FRERRUERBAE 2 EE IR EBRNIHIRS -

group transactions.

An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows: W REMBAZDHTAT
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EERE —ET)N\F BT T
Revenue: Wzs
Retailing and distribution of garments 2,254,126 2,299,980 MIKEE KD
Rendering of garment-related services - 16,889 TR AR I AR B AR 75
2,254,126 2,316,869
Other income: HAh A -
Interest income 3,909 4,308 FEUA
Claims received 3,014 1,655 B RERIE
Royalty income 2,296 3,150 HABRA
Gross rental income 330 273 HEWAERE
Others 3,932 1,631 Eh
13,481 11,017
2,267,607 2,327,886

104 ANNUAL REPORT 2008/09 %3k



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& R &R Kzt

30June 2009 —EENFRA=1+H

FINANCE COSTS 6. RERAE
Group -]
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EERE —EENF AT
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts ARAFANBHEEZRITER
wholly repayable within five years 2,707 2,204 K= 2 F &
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BB
Group S
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEBZBRBIATRFIE IR (GEA) TFIER :
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EERE —EENF BT T
Cost of sales: SHE A -
Cost of inventories sold 1,135,100 1,154,253 EHFEEZHA
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventory 6,384 (7,236) GFEEE(BERD)
1,141,484 1,147,017
Staff costs BTRA
(including directors’ remuneration — note 8): (BRESWNE —H3E8) :
Salaries and wages 336,085 366,049 HFERIAE
Equity-settled share option expense 3,171 5,995 s 4 EH IR R
Pension scheme contributions 25,662 26,015 BRIREFH IR
Less: Forfeited contributions (173) (177) R MR
Net pension scheme contributions (note a) 25,489 25,838 RIREFTENFR R (M 5Ea)
364,745 397,882
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 7. BRBIAIER ()
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (continued) REBZBRBANEHE MR (GFA) THIEE : (&)
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EEhE —EENF BT T
Depreciation 79,547 77,675 E
Minimum lease payments under operating leases: KMEHE T REAE
Land and buildings 346,460 330,191 T RIEF
Contingent rents of retail shops and department stores 44,464 51,255 TEEHEBERAR RS
Plant and machinery 743 701 R R 3R
Auditors’ remuneration 2,485 2,752 A LT A
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, & MEmE - BERZEEE
plant and equipment 2,150 8,155 Z &8
Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of debtors (118) 99 FEW BR FORE, CRERE)
Foreign exchange differences, net 7,944 (12,967) SNEE R M ERE - A
Net rental income (49) (53) HEBWANFE
Fair value losses/(gains), net on derivative PTESMIAZAFE
financial instruments — transactions FER (W) - T REER
not qualifying as hedges (note b) (1,929) 7,983 HHEBHR S (H5Eb)
Notes: B 5E
(@) Asat 30 June 2009, forfeited contributions available to the Group to reduce its contributions to the ORSO Scheme @ RZZTAFANA=TH - NEE A AR R E SR KRG8 R
in future years amounted to HK$130,000 (2008: HK$254,000). 2R W F OB A6 130,0000T (Z 2 )\ 4F : A #254,0007T) °
(b) The fair value losses/(gains), net on derivative financial instruments - transactions not qualifying as hedges were (b) TTESRIAZATFEFER (W& - THEERMPEDNRS
included in “other operating expenses” on the face of the consolidated income statement. EREEGANER 2 [EtnEERz] -
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEMS
Group =
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong BIEETRAEBEERTEAEI6IERERBZAFTEESZHE
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: wm
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EEAEF —ETN\F BT T
Executive directors: HMITES -
Fees - - e
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 8,321 7,997 e R REYRE
Performance related bonuses 147 788 LR IRAE A 2 JEAL
Equity-settled share option expense 919 2,779 BmEEERERST
Pension scheme contributions 47 45 RN ETEI R
9,434 11,609
Independent non-executive directors: B IEHITES
Fees 601 585 iikn
10,035 12,194
The total remuneration included HK$147,000 (2008: HK$788,000) of performance bonuses payable to the M ABBRBENRITES CEBIELAE 147,000 (ZZEEN
executive directors. F : 751788,0007T) ©
In prior years, share options were granted to the directors in respect of their services to the Group under RBEFE  RAFIRESRASEERERSE M RESREARAT
the share option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 29 to the financial BRI T 2 BEARE - FHIEE N M RMFE29 - BEEAERE S
statements. The fair value of such share options, which has been recognised in the income statement AEEDREREHANETE  TERGEHEERERER - RAF
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial Eft \BI BBk eBEst A LESEME 2 BER -

statements for the current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEME (&)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BYFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were as follows: RENEXNTFTELFNTEET ST ¢
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EZhF —ZEEN\F BT
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han 231 225 REME L
Mr. WONG Wai Kay 185 180 FHELE
Prof. SIN Yat Ming 185 180 ASIEE €5
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond - - EXEEE
601 585
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors during the year FERNWRENBLIFNTES 2 HMMBE (ZZTNE &) -
(2008: Nil). Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond waived remuneration of HK$185,000 during the year (2008: & STENFRNRENE AR 185,000t (ZETNEF B
HK$180,000). 180,0007T) °
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(b) Executive directors
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8. EEME (&)
(b) BITES

Equity-
Salaries, settled
allowances Performance share Pension
and benefits related option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
£33 =41 BERIFAARE EERLEE BIK
in HK$ thousand wBe REYWE Z A B X sTEIER e BT
2009 —EZREF
Executive directors: WITES :
Mr. LAW Ka Sing - 1,617 - - 12 1,629 BRELAE
Ms. CHAN So Kuen - 3,767 100 736 12 4,615 PRE/LZ T
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund - 1,765 47 441 12 2,265 BEERAE
Mr. WONG Yan Sang (note a) = 1,172 = (258) 11 925 =T AL A (Kista)
- 8,321 147 919 47 9,434
2008 —EEN\E
Executive directors: HITES -
Mr. LAW Ka Sing - 1,615 - - 12 1,627 BREFAE
Ms. CHAN So Kuen = 3,708 467 1,348 12 5,535 BRE/L L
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund = 1,713 215 781 12 2,721 BEEkE
Mr. WONG Yan Sang (note a) = 961 106 650 9 1,726 =T AL A (Kista)
- 7,997 788 2,779 45 11,609
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEM< (&)
(b) Executive directors (continued) (b) HITESE (F)
Note: BsE -
(@) Mr. WONG Yan Sang resigned as an executive director on 20 May 2009. (@) BLCEALER-ZEZENGFRA-THEERITES -
There was no arrangement under which an executive director waived or agreed to waive any FRLEBARTEFREKRBRREMME 2 L5 -

remuneration during the year.

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. AEREHES
Group S
The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2008: two) directors, details of whose FRNRREEFEERERE (ZTTN\F  ME)EF  HMeF
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2008: three) BEBIIR EXHES  AR=2 (ZFF/\F: =B) RREHIFE
non-director, highest paid employees for the year are as follows: FRERFRNZMEFENT
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EEAF ZTTN\F BT T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,605 4,791 e RMREYRE
Performance related bonuses 74 490 AR IRAE A 2 TEAL
Equity-settled share option expense 865 1,805 RS EERER
Pension scheme contributions 86 126 RIREEHEI K
6,630 7,212
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 9. hEBRESHEES (&)
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands MeNFTrIEEcEaHFESEERBNT :
is as follows:
Number of employees EE2#H
2009 2008
—EEAEF —TENF
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 - 751,500,001 70 278 #2,000,0007T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 2 75 %2,000,001 7T £ 7% #2,500,0007T
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 1 75 #2,500,001 7T £ 75 #3,000,0007T
3 3
10. TAX 10. BL1E
Group &8

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

ERNEHERFARE BRI AEHERBEN AR E16.5% (=
TT)\F 16.5%) RELER - EEMMBEMSRRTUEN 2 HIH
DREAEEEBELERERR REEBRZRAERE RERE
B mERITHEREGE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff& 3R &k Hi st

30June 2009 —EEZNEFNA=1H

10. TAX (continued)

10. ®iIE (&)

2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EEhE —ZENF BT T
Current — Hong Kong BVER— &%
Charge for the year 16,278 20,373 FRZH
Overprovision in prior years (2,661) (83) BEFERERE
Current — Elsewhere BIVHA — H th 3h (=
Charge for the year 3,913 3,967 FRZH
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years (9,107) 381 BEFERETR (BEEE)
Deferred (note 27) (1,570) (689) EFE (P 7E27)
Total tax charge for the year 6,853 23,949 FABIBEX H2%E
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10. TAX (continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using the statutory rate of Hong Kong
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& R &Kzt

10. Bi1E (&)

30June 2009 —EEAFRA=1+H

BERAEE (RARREKRENMEBABMEL) 2 EEREAER
BERARBHRADEN Z HAMS IR ER R R E 2 HIBR X HEE

tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are ARGERME (BAERE) BRI X 2 EHRIOT ¢
as follows:
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand “ZETNE % “EENE % BT
Profit before tax 57,105 87,524 BREL AR A
Tax at the statutory tax rate 9,422 16.5 14,442 16.5 BEEMEFE WA
Effect of different tax rates for companies REMRERER S8 2 A
operating in other jurisdictions (4,863) (8.5) (1,473) (1.7 RPMARE 72
Adjustments in respect of current BT HFEERE
tax of previous periods (11,768) (20.6) 298 03 fEHIHE
Income not subject to tax (6,774) (11.9) (7.818) (8.9) BRGH 2 WA
Expenses not deductible for tax 4,169 73 7,142 8.2 ARMER IR 2 B2
Unrecognised tax losses and temporary ARBREEERLRLZE
differences 15,841 21.7 12,002 13.7
Tax losses utilised from previous periods ) = (222) 03) BENECHATEER
Others 833 1.5 (422) (0.5) Hi
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate 6,853 12.0 23,949 273 BASEERBEFE ZHEX N
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R & Hi st

30June 2009 —EEZNFNA=1H

11.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2009
includes a profit of HK$31,927,000 (2008: HK$9,778,000), which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 30(b)).

11.

RAREZFEAEMERRT
HE-ZTAFEANA=-TALFEZAAREREE ARGLEEHE
KB IERFIB#31,927,00050 (Z T /)\4F : #$#9,778,0007T) @ I
B RRIEAR R R #®E A (T 330(0b)) °

12. DIVIDENDS 12. KB
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EENF —ET)N\F ok e
Interim — HK 1.0 cent (2008: Nil) per ordinary share 15,939 - RE - SREERI.OBIL(ZZEZENE &)
Proposed final — HK1.0 cent (2008: HK 1.0 cent) BR R — AR AR 1.078 (L
per ordinary share 15,939 15,882 ZZET)N\FE : 1.08)
31,878 15,882

13.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company of HK$50,252,000 (2008: HK$63,575,000), and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 1,591,184,331 (2008: 1,584,412,498) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company of HK$50,252,000 (2008: HK$63,575,000). The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the 1,591,184,331 (2008: 1,584,412,498) ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 3,675,137 (2008: 11,005,338) assumed to have been issued at no consideration on
the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008/09 %3k

13.

REZ Z KRR S AFARRBRRRERBRBFEANS L2t
fE °

RRAREEREREARGERER

ERERBRDHIBRERNAR L BB ARG F AR RS
50,252,0007C (Z = \ 4 : B#63,575,00000) R FAD BETER
P& AN S 159 £01,591,184,331 1% (—Z = )\ 4F : 1,584,412,4980%) 5t

= o
el

ERBEERFNDIBBERAR L BEREFEE ABGF AR RS
50,252,0007C (=T = )\ 4F : ##63,575,00070) st & - st EATE 2
LTRRNNEFIEE BRAREERERZT 2 FAB BT EBER
1,591,184,331f% (= ZZ )\ : 1,584,412,498[%) * KRB MRIER
BTSSR AE BN EBR AT ERMERSRERETZY
WA N9 813,675,137/ (ZZFZ/\F : 11,005,338[%)



14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& 3R &R i &t

30June 2009 —EENFRA=1+H

14. Y% - BERRE

Group -]
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
HE BER &R KBER
in HK$ thousand T REF MEEE g WAERE RE wiE BT T
2009 —EERF
At 30 June 2008 and RZBZENFRA=ZTHEK
at 1 July 2008: —EZN\EFELA-A
Cost or valuation 82,154 308,165 153 141,997 2,158 534,627 BN R
Accumulated depreciation (28,585) (219,806) (129) (108,668) (1,672) (358,860) Z2REE
Net carrying amount 53,569 88,359 24 33,329 486 175,767 REFE
At 1 July 2008, net of accumulated E@:%;ﬁ)\ﬁﬁﬂ—ﬁ :
depreciation 53,569 88,359 24 33,329 486 175,767 MREBETE
Additions - 64,876 - 22,964 163 88,003 =1
Disposals/write-off - (2,101) - (436) (252) (2,789) &g
Depreciation provided during the year (2,364) (60,688) 9) (16,343) (143) (79,547) FRYTEEE
Exchange realignment = (2,242) (2) (768) 42 (2,970) MEH AR
At 30 June 2009, net of accumulated R-ZZEZNFAAA=+H "
depreciation 51,205 88,204 13 38,746 296 178,464 MR RBEINE
At 30 June 2009: RZZETNFANA=+AH :
Cost or valuation 82,154 332,385 141 148,538 1,647 564,865 PZNEEARYE
Accumulated depreciation (30,949) (244,181) (128) (109,792) (1,351) (386,401) Z2IEE
Net carrying amount 51,205 88,204 13 38,746 296 178,464 BRMEFE
Analysis of cost or valuation: BB EEINT -
At cost 42,154 332,385 141 148,538 1,647 524,865 i§ﬁ$fﬁ
At 31 July 1993 valuation 40,000 - = = = 40,000 R-—AN=F+tA=+—HB#E
82,154 332,385 141 148,538 1,647 564,865
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& 3R & i &t

30June 2009 —EZNFNA=1H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. % - MERRE (&)
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
AE RER  HH- ZBR
in HK$ thousand TR BT EZ30 i ae MAERE " wE BT T
2008 —EENE
At 1 July 2007: RZFZTLELA—R :
Cost or valuation 82,154 305,753 11,730 127,300 2,772 529,709 P ANME S (5 (B
Accumulated depreciation (26,221) (224,784) (4,336) (96,041) (1,978) (353,360) RENE
Net carrying amount 55,933 80,969 7,394 31,259 794 176,349 BREFE
At 1 July 2007, net of accumulated E’:‘:;ﬁgtﬁ‘fgﬂfﬁ '
depreciation 55,933 80,969 7,394 31,259 794 176,349 MR RBEITE
Additions = 67,619 72 17,802 = 85,493 NE
Disposals/write-off = (6,103) (7,137) (1,309) (181) (14,730) e
Depreciation provided during the year (2,364) (58,761) (511) (15,857) (182) (77,675) FRITEEE
Exchange realignment - 4,635 206 1,434 55 6,330 P& 7 582
At 30 June 2008, net of accumulated E’:‘:;ﬁg}\ﬁ/‘j\ﬂ =+8":
depreciation 53,569 88,359 24 33,329 486 175,767 R RBEITE
At 30 June 2008: RZFZENFERA=TH :
Cost or valuation 82,154 308,165 153 141,997 2,158 534,627 P ANME S
Accumulated depreciation (28,585) (219,806) (129) (108,668) (1,672) (358,860) RENE
Net carrying amount 53,569 88,359 24 33,329 486 175,767 BRADF(E
Analysis of cost or valuation: BRAESEEDT
At cost 42,154 308,165 153 141,997 2,158 494,627 B E
At 31 July 1993 valuation 40,000 = = = = 40,000 BE-AN=FtA=+—RHH#E
82,154 308,165 153 141,997 2,158 534,627
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group’s land and buildings are held under medium term leases and are situated in:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& 3R &R K} &t

30June 2009 —EENFRA=1+H

14. W% - BERFRE (&)

AEBEZ T REFHATBRBLOFTAALGR

At cost At valuation Total
in HK$ thousand B AE RGE wE BT T
Hong Kong 21,654 40,000 61,654 N
Elsewhere 20,500 = 20,500 Hith it 5
42,154 40,000 82,154

Certain land and buildings were revalued at 31 July 1993 by Chesterton Petty Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, on an open market, existing use basis. Since 1994, no further revaluations
of the Group’s land and buildings have been carried out, as the Group has relied upon the exemption
granted under the transitional provision in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16, from the requirement to carry out
future revaluation of its property, plant and equipment which were stated at valuation at that time.

At 30 June 2009, the Group’s revalued land and buildings had been carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, they would have been included in the financial statements at
approximately HK$13,049,000 (2008: HK$13,731,000).

Land and buildings with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$51,205,000 (2008: HK$53,569,000) as at
the balance sheet date were revalued at the balance sheet date by RHL Appraisal Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, based on open market basis assuming sale with vacant possession, at an
aggregate open market value of HK$137,600,000 (2008: HK$125,400,000).

ET T REFHB LY AFEEREEMEBAFETAERA A
R—NN=FtA=T—"ARIHAMEIRERE 2 EEEMRHE -
B—ANEFE aRAKEEAEESHEE165ES0ARZ
BEMRRG  RBABREYE  BELRFEETARERL
BERZEEINRZIAE  RARE 2 L RETETER -

RZZTEAFANA=1H HEAEELEHZ L REFUARKE
B 2RETERREBEEAE  ERUBREFE 2 EEENA
713,049,000t (ZZZ)\F : A#%13,731,0007T) ©

NEZR ZEHEAEABHS1,205000 (CEENE B
53,569,0007T) 2 LHb RIEFHREE B RIB L HES EREEMKF
THEEBAERARRITER T ZARMBSEESHHEZ AR
T{EA A% 137,600,0007T (ZTZ)\4F : B#125,400,0007T) °

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2¥igERREBER AR

17



118

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& 3R & i &t

30June 2009 —EEZNFNA=1H

15. TRADEMARK 15. BE1Z
Group £8
in HK$ thousand BET T
2009 —EENF

Cost at 1 July 2008 and at 30 June 2009,

net of accumulated impairment 1,164
At 30 June 2009:
Cost 1,164

Accumulated impairment -
Net carrying amount 1,164

2008

Cost at 1 July 2007 and at 30 June 2008,

net of accumulated impairment 1,164
At 30 June 2008:
Cost 1,164

Accumulated impairment -
Net carrying amount 1,164

Indefinite useful life

The Group classified the acquired “bossini” trademark as an intangible asset with indefinite life in
accordance with HKAS 38 Intangible Assets. This is supported by the fact that the “bossini” trademark is
a well known and long established fashion brand since 1987, its legal rights are capable of being renewed
indefinitely at insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration, and based on future financial
performance of the Group, they are expected to generate positive cash flows indefinitely. Under HKAS 38,
the Group re-evaluates the useful life of the “bossini” trademark each year to determine whether events
or circumstances continue to support the view of the indefinite useful life of the asset.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008/09 ##

E-2ENFLA-BRR-FEAFAA
ZRA 1 RHOR(E

+H

R-EEAFAA=+A :
A

2HRE

REDEE

—BENE

B_ZZF+tA-BERR-_ZBENFRA=TH
ZRAN - 1B RIERE

R-BENEAA=TA :

RN

RiERE

AREDFE
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15.

TRADEMARK (continued)

Impairment

In accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets, the Group completed its annual impairment test for
the “bossini” trademark by comparing its recoverable amount to its carrying amount as at 30 June 2009.
The Group has conducted a valuation of the “bossini” trademark as one corporate asset based on the
value in use calculation for the Indonesian market. The resulting value of the “bossini” trademark as at
30 June 2009 was significantly higher than its carrying amount. This valuation uses cash flow projections
based on financial estimates covering a three-year period, the expected sales deriving from the “bossini”
trademark in the Indonesian market and a discount rate of 5%. Management has considered the above
assumptions and valuation and also taken into account the business expansion plan going forward, the
current wholesale order books and the strategic retail expansion in Indonesia and believes that there is no
impairment in the “bossini” trademark. Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable change in

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& 3R &R K} &t

15.

30June 2009 —EENFRA=1+H

B ()

B

RIBBR ST ERFEIREEHE - N&E B [bossini | HIER —F
ZAFRNA=ZTHZANRE B REEEEL LBATKEGFR
BAR - AREERNEREESFEHEEMHZ [bossini] AR (JA
— (B EEE) EITA I KA ENE™ IS Z [bossini | BER —F
FAFAA=ZTRZBEABSREREE - ZAEKBEER=F
Mz MMt R S RETRR - BFH KA [bossini | BIEREIEM 52
HERIAS%BZ T IRXHET - EEEEREN LREMEERES
BARREG RS - BRI ETERRAERBETERE - A H
1& [bossini | IR HF(ELRE - EREREEMNNALLEEMRREE
MAEAAcEERTSERFRE LA RAERBUA TRE S

any of the above key assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the trademark to o
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.
16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. B AR =
Company YN
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EEhE —EENF AT T
Unlisted shares, at cost 193,962 193,962 JELETMRRG - KA E
Provision for impairment (50,800) (50,800) VERIEEE
143,162 143,162
Due from subsidiaries 207,803 201,310 e Wi Bt 8 X B kIR
350,965 344,472

Impairment was recognised for certain unlisted subsidiaries because these subsidiaries had net deficiency
in assets and had difficulty to repay the amount due to the Company. The amounts due from subsidiaries
included in the Company’s current assets are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand or
within one year.

BHRETIHLTHBARSRBEEFBM R REEERNARRZ
PR - FZEMNB AR ZRED HER - RARRRPEEAAZ
FEUPH B R RIS IR R - R B RIRERBRAR —FAEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& 3R &k Hi st

30June 2009 —EZNFNA=1H

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued share/

16. B A T REE (4])

TEMBARZFHBNAT :

Percentage
of equity

registration registered attributable Principal
Name and operations capital to the Company activities
=g BRI EMREE LR BRITRGEMEAZEHE FATEERET DL TEEHK
Direct H## Indirect 1%
Active Link Limited (note a) Hong Kong HK$/&#5,000,0007C - 100 Retailing and wholesaling of garments
SWBER A A (Fizra) B R EE Rt 3
Bossini Clothing Limited Hong Kong HK$&% 27T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
BE ERREE RS H
Bossini Distribution Limited Hong Kong HK$E® 17T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
EMBESHAR AT B ERREE RS H
Bossini Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$&% 27T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
EMECEARAF B ERREE RS H
Bossini Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$&% 27T - 100 Distribution of garments
Bossini Investment Limited British Virgin Islands US$11,928% T 100 - Investment holding
EEELHS REER
Burling Limited British Virgin Islands US$10037T - 100 Licensing of trademarks
EEELHS [ElEdsE
BNTRAEEEXERAA People’s Republic of China RMBA K #1,010,0007T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
(notes b and d) (“PRC")/Mainland China RIREE KD
(Bt 3E bRed) HEE AR HAE
(TR &),/ B AR
J & R Bossini Fashion Pte. Ltd. Singapore SG$2,000,000%7 AN T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
2N BRREE RS H
J & R Bossini Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$ & 27T - 100 Investment holding
EMEEE AR QA B REZERR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff& 3R &R i &t

30June 2009 —EENFA=1+H

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. M B 1 E 2= (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) FTEMBREIZFENT : (&)
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued share/ of equity
registration registered attributable Principal
Name and operations capital to the Company activities
= R/ ZfKk&EELE ERTRE,EMERZEHE RAREERER DL TEEK
Direct H## Indirect 1%
Kacono Trading Limited British Virgin Islands HK$/&%2,0007T - 100 Investment holding
EBELHS HEER
Key Value Trading Limited British Virgin Islands US$1003 7T = 100 Investment holding
RERZHS B R
Land Challenger Limited Hong Kong HK$EH 27T - 100 Dormant
EBR AR B EmEx
Langzhi Fashion (Shenzhen) PRC/Mainland China HK$/8&%6,600,0007T - 100 Dormant
Co., Ltd. (notes c and d) FRE R B A B A S
AR ORYI) AR A A
(Hft3Eckd)
Lead Commence Limited Hong Kong HK$®27T — 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
Y RUHEERRA A B ERREE RS H
Luhur Daya Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM$ 5827 = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
Bk BRIREE R 5 H
Bossini Onmay International Limited Hong Kong HK$EH 27T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
EME EXBEEBR AR BB BIREE R 5 H
Rapid City Limited Hong Kong HK$B# 27T - 100 Property holding and letting
M AR A A BB MEHBEREE
Sun View Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$ & 27T = 100 Property holding and letting
HREZEERAA e MEFRFALEE
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally RENEEER AU AEFFALEETEZERIERANEEF
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give BEEERHIHNBAGT - BEEREEBHMITB AR 2557
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. Rt BIBEBERTTE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& 3R &k Hi st

30June 2009 —EZNEFNA=1H

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(@ The branch of this subsidiary in Taiwan was not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm of the

Ernst & Young global network.

(b) BEBMTEMEEZEABRAF is a limited liability enterprise established in the PRC which obtained its business

registration certificate on 14 July 1993.

() Langzhi Fashion (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned foreign investment enterprise with limited liability
established in the PRC which obtained its business registration certificate on 14 June 1993 and is licensed to

conduct business for 25 years from the date of its business registration.

(d) These subsidiaries were not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm of the Ernst & Young global

16.

B B 2 B ek (AR
Wi

(@ ZMBRAANGEDRFZKRE  WIEBEELKETMEFAAR
KRR E B AT 2 R AR TR o

by BMMERHEEEERAFRAHMRPEKR I ERETLE  HR
—AN=F+tA+MBEELENR -

(0 BAERECRIDBRARA—ERFERIREINEEZEREGZER
EECE-ER—NAN=ZFAATHAREEENR - WEERSEHR
B8 B REFHAS & 15255 ©

d) WHEMNBARZKRE  YIHFMBEBLKEAMEBAK L K SIS

network. ST IRBR AR A% -
17. INVENTORIES 17. 78
Group &5
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EEREF —EENF BT
Raw materials 4,122 4,095 B
Finished goods 276,865 225,961 BIPK
280,987 230,056
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff& 3R &R i &t

30June 2009 —EENFA=1+H

18. DEBTORS 18. FE UK BR =X
Group £H
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —ETNEF —TENF BT
Debtors 55,370 62,769 JE W5 AR 3K
Impairment (227) (250) VERED
55,143 62,519

Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group normally grants credit periods of up to 60 days to its
trade customers. Each trade customer has a maximum credit limit, except for new trade customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade customers relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade debtors are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of debtors as at the balance sheet date, based on the due date, is as follows:

BREMERBHEN  AKEE—REATETHRESETFPES
60KREEH - BB HEF —RABRNFEI  REHEFPHIRE
ERiEERE - ARERNEHARNE 2 UK EFREZS - 8
HRFBSRERETHENER - ENA LPTRARAEE 2 ;&
WERDBRRBRZ2ZREFEP  HARBYEREET 2
EERR - BREERHEE -

AT BB H B BUR AR & E B Z R DT

2009 2008

in HK$ thousand —ZETAE —ZEEN\F BT
Neither past due nor impaired 45,681 47,772 FREHE KRR E
Less than 1 month past due 4,824 6,684 BEAD R —E A
1 to 2 months past due 996 2,369 B —Z=RMEA
2 to 3 months past due 1,053 1,746 BEME=EA
Over 3 months 2,816 4,198 BiE=1EA

55,370 62,769

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2¥igERREBER AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& 3R &k Hi st

30June 2009 —EZNFNA=1H

18. DEBTORS (continued) 18. FEUWR AR =X (4&)

The movements in the provision for impairment of debtors are as follows: JEW AR R 2 BB EZEHMT

2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —ETAEF 2T N\F BT T
At beginning of year 250 514 E ]
Impairment losses recognised 7 99 EERBEEE
Amount written off as uncollectible 95 (363) N AT UG [E] 2 R TE 8
Impairment losses reversed (125) - REEER D
At end of year 227 250 RELR
Included in the above provision for impairment of debtors is a provision for individually impaired debtors FT A L FE U BR 5k 2 B B AR 2 LR MR 5k 2 (8 R R B 5 #5227,000
of HK$227,000 (2008: HK$250,000) with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$227,000 (2008: TT(ZEZNF : B#250,0007T) {ERE - HERMEE AB#227,000
HK$250,000). The individually impaired debtors relate to customers with outstanding balances which are L (ZZTZT )N\ : #¥250,0007T) © B RIRE 2 EUER R ETBET
not expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over AREZEEAREREREH AEEW RN ZLERERZ FREE
these balances. ARk A EER T -
The aged analysis of the debtors that are not considered to be impaired is as follows: KRR RRE 2 RYR R BRI AT I T

2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EBhE —ZENF BT T
Neither past due nor impaired 45,681 47,772 R EA R RORE
Less than 1 month past due 4,824 6,684 wmE DR —1{E A
1 to 2 months past due 996 2,369 BH — = MR A
2 to 3 months past due 1,053 1,746 BHIME = A
Over 3 months 2,589 3,948 i =& A

55,143 62,519
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18.

DEBTORS (continued)
Debtors that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Debtors that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& R &R Kzt

18.

30June 2009 —EENFA=1+H

FEW AR K (4]
REBRTRREZEBUERERSZTILEFER  ZBEP&EO
BENESL -

BB R ARRE 2 BRI RS AR EEA RFBELEZ
BURFPER REBELR ARAEERR  HEARZLS
SIEREMRERE AEEEERNEEAEIRERFNIRR
A2 ERIE - REEW RN ZLERZ LA EAERKEMER
R’ -

19. DEPOSITS PAID 19. EfF#&E
Group =
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EERE —ET)N\F BT T
Rental deposits 96,901 94,664 HEZE
Less: Non-current portion (62,967) (68,430) B FERNEREL D
Current portion 33,934 26,234 BN ERER (7

The rental deposits are paid for operating leases in respect of land and buildings, and are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to eleven years.

AEBREBET W REFZEERNTNEERES BT 2BHN T
121MERE -
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30June 2009 —EZNEFNA=1H

20. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. TR FRIE R H Ath FE W AR IR
Group £H Company 72 7]
2009 2008 2009 2008
in HK$ thousand ZEBAF —ZEENEF —EZhF —EE)N\F BT T
Prepayments 24,456 13,827 199 211 TR
Other receivables 18,794 15,340 - - Hh e ARIE
43,250 29,167 199 211
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above balances tEEYEBHLRE - BFE DRERNERRRZ SHRANS
relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of default. MEERIEENES
21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BANK DEPOSITS 1. RERRESEEEEURBRITER
Group £ H Company AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
in HK$ thousand ZEEBAF —EENEF ZEBAF —EEN\F BT
Cash and bank balances 304,613 286,869 442 1,173 R & RIRITH R
Non-pledged bank deposits 36,161 21,819 - - ELRIRITER
340,774 308,688 442 1,173
Pledged bank deposits with original maturity BUSERRE I B
of less than three months when acquired 1,486 822 - - PR=ER 2 BERRITEK
Pledged bank deposits with original maturity RiEREREIHA
of more than three months when acquired = 793 = - LZR=EH 2 BEARITER
1,486 1,615 - -
Total 342,260 310,303 442 1,173 Fab
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi
amounted to HK$20,619,000 (2008: HK$15,608,000). The Renminbi is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
Renminbi for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks and pledged bank deposits earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Short term bank deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term bank
deposit rates. Non-pledged bank deposits of HK$36,161,000 as at 30 June 2009 classified as current
portion are made for a period of one to eight months, and earn interest at interest rates ranging from
0.01% to 0.375% per annum.

The non-pledged bank deposits of HK$21,819,000 as at 30 June 2008 classified as current portion were
made for a period of three months which matured on 27 September 2008 and earned interest at interest
rates ranging from 1.74% to 2.21% per annum. The Group is not entitled to withdraw the bank deposits
without the bank’s prior consent and the bank may at its absolute discretion refuse to give such consent.
These bank deposits are non-assignable and non-chargeable, except to the bank.

The bank deposits of HK$778,000 (2008: HK$822,000) are pledged to the local tax authority for an
overseas branch of the Group as at 30 June 2009. The remaining pledge deposits of HK$708,000 (2008:
HK$793,000) are pledged to a bank as security for a bank guarantee for an overseas subsidiary of the
Group as at 30 June 2009.

Cash and cash equivalents, the non-pledged bank deposits and the pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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. BERBESERBURBTER ()

REER AEBENUARETECZEEEESSEER AEE
20,619,0007T (ZZZ )\ F : B%15,608,0007T) - A R¥EREEE B
HBEMER - ERE P BIREINE S SIE RO R AEE - &R
EEEMAT  AKEBLBRERECEINEXH ZRITHARE
HIRBINEE -

BOEREEERGERERRBAIERAREE 2 FEFERTE -
RHEHERHENTIRE3EA  NETASEZARESEE
mE " MEEEZEHEFANEGFE - RZEENFAAA=FTH
FIVERNERER 19 2 IR ARIR 1T 17 208 836,161,000t BE —=/\f@A -
W N FEF2Z0.01%ZE0.375% 2.

REZTZNFANA=+8  FIERNERMD 2 BB IRITFEREE
21,819,000t A=A ER T N\FEAA-++BHEH I
BN T EMNEITA4%E221%:TE - AEBAGBEARRBRITZE
ERETIRIIRITER  MBTAI2ERTERLTERREEE -
BRERITHN - R FRITEREEERIEA -

RZZFZENFANA=TAH  AEBER RGN IERPRITF B
#778,0007T (ZFZ )\ F : H#822,0007T) FTEMIHIED - R=F
ZTNEASNA=TH - FBRAEBFHBEE708,000T (ZTE)\F
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30June 2009 —EZNFNA=1H

22. TRADE CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 22. EERRR « HAFETRIE R ST ERIE
Group £H Company 2T
2009 2008 2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EEhE —ETNF —EEhE —EENF BT T
Trade creditors 35,197 36,668 - - JE TR
Other payables 39,591 40,986 265 234 Hfth JE T FRIB
Accruals 110,279 102,915 2,468 1,657 FEAtRIE
185,067 180,569 2,733 1,891
An aged analysis of the trade creditors as at the balance sheet date, based on the payment due date, is as AT AZEMREBBFTEMRERREER 2R DT ¢
follows:
Group 5£H
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EEBNF —ETNF BT T
Current 11,452 14,158 BN &R
0 to 30 days 15,618 8,978 0Z30K
31 to 60 days 3,424 - 31E260K
61 to 90 days 2,031 11,389 61£90K
Over 90 days 2,672 2,143 #90K
35,197 36,668
The trade creditors are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms. BNERBRER—BRRI0RA -
The other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average terms of one month. HihERNRIELAEE  THERA—MEA -
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23.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& R &R Kzt

DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 23.

The amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free, and repayable within 30 days from the
invoice date.

30June 2009 —EENFRA=1+H

FEBE R RRKE
FENRBIERRISIATEER - 28R

AN

R ER A HIE 30RAEE -

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24. STEER T A
Group =
Liabilities a5
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EEAF —EENF BT
Forward currency contracts 3,265 4,382 REEE AR

The carrying amounts of the forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values. The above
transactions involving derivative financial instruments are conducted with creditworthy financial
institutions of credit rating ranged from A to AA-.

During the year, the Group entered into various forward currency contracts to manage its exchange
rate exposures which did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. The net change in the fair value of
these non-hedging foreign currency contracts amounting to HK$1,929,000 was credited to the income
statement (2008: charged to income statement of HK$7,983,000) during the year.

EMERARZEMEERE 2 AFERR - LS RITESRT
B2 RGTEGETRNFAZAA-Z EEBRITF S RMEHETT

FRAEETUZBERAEEARNEBEEERRR @ MZES
BT EER ST RET ARG - £R @ ZSIEEHINE
ARAFEFEEHSEBH1,929,000T B R KRFEXRTEFA(ZEE
NE : BRI =P IR & #E7,983,0000T) ©
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30June 2009 —EZNFNA=1H

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

25. ;T EBITER

Group &5
2009 2008
—EThF —EENF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate per rate per
annum  Maturity Amount annum Maturity Amount
in HK$ thousand BRERR Z|H#A B EHRFEMNE Ealpety=| -l BT
Current L
Bank loans — secured 5% - 8% 2009 77,621 - - - RITER - BHEA
ZZENF
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EThEF —TENF BT
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans and repayable within one year AR —F AR ERE
or on demand 77,621 - BEZIRITER
Notes: M 5E

(@) Certain of the Group’s bank loans were secured by corporate guarantees given by the Company amounting to
HK$99,730,000 as at 30 June 2009.

(b) As at 30 June 2009, the Group had total banking facilities of approximately HK$407,306,000 (2008:

HK$322,313,000), which were secured by corporate guarantees given by the Company.

() All borrowings were in Renminbi.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& R &R Kzt

30June 2009 —EENFRA=1+H

26. PROVISION 26. & &
Group £8
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EEhE —ET)N\F BT T
At beginning of year 7,169 6,628 iNCE)
Exchange realignment (585) 541 bE i 2
At end of year 6,584 7,169 NS

27.

Provision is made in relation to a tax claim from the local tax authority on an overseas branch of the Group
relating to the underpayment of value added tax during the period from January 2001 to May 2003. The
provision is based on directors’ best estimation of the probable future payments.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as follows:

Group
Deferred tax liabilities — 2009

Depreciation
allowance in

27.

AEEREHHEBRAEL -—FEBIDEENR BT —F—AF—
ER=FHABRI N ZRETELRE  FRBBHHERRE

R AT 2 FOBFE 2 BEAAT -

i 3E B 18
FAZRERARBEREEZFSWT ¢

&5
EEBHEAEE-—2FNF

excess of related Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
FERBERA

in HK$ thousand BN E MESR ®E AT T
At 1 July 2008 707 2,047 2,754 RZEZENFELHA—H
Deferred tax credited to the income FRNEKRERFTAZ

statement during the year (1,128) = (1,128) IERERIE
Deferred tax credited to equity during the year = (95) (95) FANEERT A ZELERIE
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RZEZENFAA=THEGEGEEAER

consolidated balance sheet at 30 June 2009 (421) 1,952 1,531 RZBELERIEBEERE
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30June 2009 —EEZNFNA=1H

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 27. EERIE (48)

Deferred tax assets — 2009

Depreciation in
excess of related
depreciation

EERBREE-—TTIEF

allowance Others Total
MEEBEE
in HK$ thousand mERBE Hity BE BT T
At 1 July 2008 1,992 856 2,848 RZEENFEHA—H
Deferred tax credited to the FRNEWERETA
income statement during the year 170 272 442 BT IR
Gross deferred tax assets recognised in the RZZEZENFNA=THEGEEEAER
consolidated balance sheet at 30 June 2009 2,162 1,128 3,290 R IELETIBE E T
Deferred tax liabilities — 2008 EEBEEE-——ZSTN\F
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related Revaluation
depreciation  of properties Total
MEXHEBRB
in HK$ thousand B E MEER BE BT T
At 1 July 2007 322 2,272 2,594 NZZEZE+F+H—H
Deferred tax charged to the income FRNEKRERFTAZ
statement during the year 385 = 385 TRAE R IE
Deferred tax credited to equity during the year = (225) (225) FANEERTAZIELETIE
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RZEBZENFAA=ZTHEGEGEEAER
consolidated balance sheet at 30 June 2008 707 2,047 2,754 RZBELEMIEBEER
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27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax assets — 2008

Depreciation in
excess of related
depreciation

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& 3R &R K} &t

30June 2009 —EENFRA=1+H

27. EEHE ()

EERBREE-—TTN\F

allowance Others Total
8 BB AR

in HK$ thousand mEEBE Hit BE BT T
At 1 July 2007 - 1,774 1,774 RZEE+LFELH—H
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the FAEWERET A (F0BR) 2

income statement during the year 1,992 (918) 1,074 IR AE R IE
Gross deferred tax assets recognised in the NZZEENFNA=THEGEEERER

consolidated balance sheet at 30 June 2008 1,992 856 2,848 BRZEERIEEEER

At the balance sheet date, the Group has estimated tax losses of HK$9,857,000 (2008: HK$18,473,000)
and no deductible temporary differences (2008: HK$1,214,000) arising in Hong Kong, that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The
Group also has estimated tax losses arising in Mainland China of HK$5,816,000 (2008: HK$13,520,000)
and in Taiwan of HK$73,481,000 (2008: HK$65,040,000) that can be used to offset against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose for a maximum of five years. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as in the opinion of the directors, it is uncertain if sufficient
future taxable profits will be generated against which the tax losses can be utilised.

REER  AEERBBELE ZHFIHEEEAE9,857,0007T
ZET)\F : B1#18,473,0007T) R M AT HUR E R EEFE (ZF
T\ : ¥E1,214,0007T) - B REFTE & 2 B8 0] IR B A 1E 4R 8
RNAIBBZERBREN - AEBIARP R ARER S EELEGFH
TAEE 5 Rl AEES5,816,0007T (—ZZZ )\ 4F : 4% 13,520,0007T) K&
75 #673,481,0007T (Z =T )\ 4F : ##65,040,0007T) * FTE &£ B &
B REREARBAZERMENZESF - EERE  ARK
BT AR ELESEARRTEFAKEBARIESE B
ERIBEEW MR Z S EEEITRER
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30June 2009 —EEZNFNA=1H

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

27.

IEFERE (R)

RBPBECEMFHE - RPBRAERIZAINEIRE L ERINEER
BETRBEABMIO0%ENMY - BARER-"FTENF—A—H
REKR WEAR-ZSTLF+_A=+—HEHNRF - HEFEH
HEINREREENRDEER TR R - R BIE M B
B RAKEME - BRAREXR5% ° Bt - AEREARR B
RIZHZEHBRARR —TTN\F—H— BERROBFRMN RS
AR TR ©

AR B[R E B ROK AR BI B AP IST -

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. RZ&
Company AT
Shares i)
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EEAEF —ET)N\F BT T
Authorised: TR
2,000,000,000 (2008: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,0008% (== Z A4 : 2,000,000,0004%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000 BREEAK0.107T 2 LBk
Issued and fully paid: BBITRMERA
1,593,917,394 (2008: 1,588,249,394) 1,593,917,394% (== Z )\ 4F : 1,588,249,394%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 159,392 158,825 BREEAK0.107T 2 LBk
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Shares (continued)

During the year, the movement in share capital was as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& R & Kzt

30June 2009 —EENFRA=1+H

28. A (#8)
w1 (%)
FRZRAZLEHFIIMT

Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
in HK$ thousand ERTROHE ERTRAE R EER At BT T
At 1 April 2007 1,574,579,394 157,458 2,682 160,140 RZEELFMHA—H
Exercise of share options 13,670,000 1,367 1,996 3,363 1T A
At 30 June 2008 and RIZEZENFRA=THER
1 July 2008 1,588,249,394 158,825 4,678 163,503 —EENFELH—H
Exercise of share options (note a) 5,668,000 567 828 1,395 1T{E BB AR AE (P 5Ea)
At 30 June 2009 1,593,917,394 159,392 5,506 164,898 R-ZEZENAFANA=1H
Note: BT
(@) The subscription rights attaching to 5,668,000 share options were exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.175 (@) 5,668,00017 & AR #EBE Mt 2 SR RERE IR BB (B B AR 0.1 750 1T (M
per share (note 29), resulting in the issue of 5,668,000 shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, 7£29) - BUfE 175,668,000/ F R EEEH0.10T 2 M - BIRERE
before expenses, of HK$993,000, and the related share option reserve of HK$402,000 was transferred to the share #7E1993,0007T (RETFX) @ Rz EHWIREEITER - HRRERIER
premium account upon the exercise of these share options. # B HE402,000t EE R ERMDEERA ©
Share options IR fE
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options issued under the scheme are included RARREIRRE R 8 MR %A 8 TR RE 2 B H I NI Bk
in note 29 to the financial statements. Ff5E29 o
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30June 2009 —EZNFNA=1H

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating and providing
incentives to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations, and to enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group and any entities in which the Group holds equity interests (the “Invested Entities”).

Eligible participants of the Scheme include executive directors, non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors), and other full-time or part-time employees of the Company, the
Company’s subsidiaries and the Invested Entities. The Scheme became effective on 27 November 2003
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other future share option schemes of the Company (excluding share options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme or any other future share option schemes of the
Company) shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on 30 August 2005, the date of
the annual general meeting that the Company seeks the approval of the shareholders of the Company for
refreshing the 10% limit under the Scheme. The number of shares issuable under the Scheme was adjusted
to approximately 156,891,139 which represented 10% of the Company’s shares in issue at 30 August
2005. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting with such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is a grantee of the share options). In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share options. Options granted during
the term of the Scheme and remain unexercised immediately prior to the end of the 10-year period of the
Scheme shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant within the exercise period
for which such options are granted, notwithstanding the expiry of the Scheme.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less than the highest
of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of the share options;
(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year:
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29. IR AESH 8 (&)

R 2 AR T AR B BB ERT28 H AE AR AN & HB¥1T
SBAREBEREEN EREBREZTHSAHESRER X8
TR G IR &S kX ERER L B REH0FAER - Nt
HARR R R X B T &1 O HARR JE im B (R R 1T 2 2 PR AR » R B %
HEIT R DA REBERBGRFIRE L BRETERE ST
PATTHE -

BREsTEEHERRER  BETSERATZERSE  ((REB
PR B EAAR R RIAR D B SR AT 2 W M8+ ()RR B AR5 (A
X5 BARRB BN R FHWTE - Ri)A 2 RBRDEE
BRELTEETHAABKRESIRBRRAEG LRF 2R -

FAFEBETHARITEZBBREDT

2009 2008
ZEEAF —TT)N\F
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
hREPHTEE BRERE METHETRE FEREE R
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
per share per share
BRE®T R BB T T
At beginning of year 0.425 69,270 0.175 29,674 REEA]
Granted during the year 0.259 7,200 0.487 59,600 FAET
Forfeited during the year 0.370 (1,200) 0.399 (6,334) FAR I
Exercised during the year 0.175 (5,668) 0.175 (13,670) FATTHE
At 30 June 0.267 69,602 0.425 69,270 RNA=1H
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30June 2009 —EZNFNA=1H

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was

HK$0.175 (2008: HK$0.464).

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the balance sheet date are

29. IR REET &I (4])
FREITERBRERITE R B2 NEFHITEE AEE0.1757T (=
TET)N\F : BH0.4647T) °

REERDRITBREZTEERTERNT

as follows:
2009 —EEhE
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
RS E T 7L
HKS
per share
BB
1,000 0.175 2 December 2004 to 1 December 2013 —EENFE+—_RA-HE-_ZE—=F+=-H—H
1,000 0.175 2 December 2006 to 1 December 2013 —EERFT+_AHEC 2— F+—-HF—H
8,000,000 0.175 2 December 2008 to 1 December 2013 —EE)\F+-_A-_HE-_ZT—=F1+-A—H
8,000,000 0.530 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 —TE \F+AMAE-2—+F+A=A
12,000,000 0.530 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 2T F+AMBE=_ZE—tF+tH=H
20,000,000 0.530 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 —E——F+ANHBE-_ZE—+tF+A=H
1,440,000 0.370 19 November 2008 to 18 November 2017 — 2T )\Ft+—At+tABE-_Z—+F+—A+N\H
2,160,000 0.370 19 November 2009 to 18 November 2017 —EEANFt+—At+tNABE-_Z—+F+—A+N\H
3,600,000 0.370 19 November 2010 to 18 November 2017 —EZTF+—A+ABRE-_ZT—+&F+—A+N\H
240,000 0.355 28 January 2009 to 27 January 2018 —EENF AT NBEZE—N\F—HA=+tH
360,000 0.355 28 January 2010 to 27 January 2018 e +/\E§_ —N\FE—HA=Z++H
600,000 0.355 28 January 2011 to 27 January 2018 —E——F—A-+NBE=ZE-N\F—A=++tH
1,200,000 0.357 26 March 2009 to 25 March 2018 —ERAF=A -+ NBE_ZT—/\F=A_-+HH
1,800,000 0.357 26 March 2011 to 25 March 2018 —E——F=A -+ NBE_ZT—/\F=ZA_-+HH
3,000,000 0.357 26 March 2013 to 25 March 2018 —E—=F=A-t+BE_E—/\F=HA-+hHH
840,000 0.333 15 July 2009 to 14 July 2018 —EENFLATRBE-Z-N\F+A+ME
720,000 0.333 15 July 2010 to 14 July 2018 —Z-ZTFL+ A+HEBAE-_ZT—)\FtA+MAH
1,740,000 0.333 15 July 2011 to 14 July 2018 —E——F+A+HEBE=-ZT—)\F+A+IMUAE
900,000 0.333 15 July 2013 to 14 July 2018 —%—:itﬁ +REE-_ZT—N\FLA+NH
600,000 0.160 31 October 2009 to 30 October 2018 EENF+A=+—"HBE-_ZT—\F+A=+H
900,000 0.160 31 October 2011 to 30 October 2018 :2——¢+ﬂ =+—HEZ-_ZT—)\Ft+A=1+H
1,500,000 0.160 31 October 2013 to 30 October 2018 —E—=F+HA=+—BE=—ZF—\E+HA=+8H
69,602,000

138 ANNUAL REPORT 2008/09 ##



29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
2008
Exercise price*

Number of options Exercise period

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff& 3R &R i &t

30June 2009 —EENFA=1+H

29. B PR REST B (5])
—EENF

BRESE TEE 1TEHR
HKS
per share
FREET
1,664 0.175 2 December 2004 to 1 December 2013 —EENF+-_A-RE-_FT—=F1+=-HA—H
1,668 0.175 2 December 2006 to 1 December 2013 —EERFFZAZ HifQ =#+=A—H
13,666,668 0.175 2 December 2008 to 1 December 2013 —EENFE+-_A-BE-Z—=F1+=-A—H
8,000,000 0.530 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 — TR \F+LANRE-_T—+F+HA=H
12,000,000 0.530 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 —E—EF+AMNBE=Z—tF+HA=H
20,000,000 0.530 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 —E——F+ANAE-_E—+F+A=H
1,680,000 0.370 19 November 2008 to 18 November 2017 2 N\F+—At+tNBE_ZE—+tF+—A+N\H
2,520,000 0.370 19 November 2009 to 18 November 2017 —EERF+—At+hAE-_ZT—+F+—A+/\H
4,200,000 0.370 19 November 2010 to 18 November 2017 —E—FF+—At+hBAE-_ZT—+F+—A+/\H
240,000 0.355 28 January 2009 to 27 January 2018 —EENEF AT NREZ-N\F—HAZ=+tH
360,000 0.355 28 January 2010 to 27 January 2018 2 EFE-HAZF+NREZZ-N\F—HA=+tHR
600,000 0.355 28 January 2011 to 27 January 2018 —E—F A+ N NBEZZ—N\F—H=++tH
1,200,000 0.357 26 March 2009 to 25 March 2018 —EENF A+ ANAE_ZE-N\F=ZA=+HAH
1,800,000 0.357 26 March 2011 to 25 March 2018 —E——F=A-+NAE_ZT-NF=ZA=+HH
3,000,000 0.357 26 March 2013 to 25 March 2018 —E—=F=-A-+ABAE-_ZT— \F=ZA-+HHAH
69,270,000

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar
changes in the Company’s share capital.

On 15 July 2008 and 31 October 2008, the Company granted 4,200,000 and 3,000,000 share options
to its employees. The fair value of the share options granted during the year was HK$998,000 (HK$0.139
each) of which the Group recognised a share option expense of HK$294,000 in the current year. The Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$3,171,000 in the current year for the 69,602,000 share options
outstanding as at balance sheet date.

* BREZITERERRMRKBEITAR AR B RAZ EMEEIE
BT IARE

RZZZENFLATHAR=ZZZN\E+A=1T—0 FRFAMHLE
& 8 $52 H14,200,0001% %3,000,00017 BE J& # - FRE R HEMREZ
N {E &7E%998,0007T (FARAEH0.1397T) * EF AEERNAEE
O iR R AR AERT S 5 294,0005T - REBB N EE B M RITEZ
69,602,00017 i % 1 74 7N 5 15 e R e AR ) S 8 #63,171,0007T ©
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year was estimated as at the date of
grant, using a trinomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

29. B R AESH 8 (&)

RENMFEH 2 B EEBRE 2 XA FETDINER L B#GE  XF
R=AARREBER  KZEAR L BRE Z R AEER T
B TREIIAFAEAR 2T AER -

2009 2008

—EThE —ETN\F
Weighted average dividend yield (%) 3.29% 3.51% INHE 735 IR B 2R (%)
Weighted average expected volatility (%) 55.10% 69.76% hn#Ee 5 78 B B0 (%)
Weighted average historical volatility (%) 55.10% 69.76% HNHE T35 FE 520K B(%)
Weighted average risk-free interest rate (%) 3.961% 4.263% DN ST 35 fm 2 B ) (%)
Expected life of options (years) 10 10 BRETEETF B (F)
Weighted average share price (HK$) 0.259 0.482 nigEFEHRE (B¥T)

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is not necessarily
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 69,602,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme,
which represented approximately 4.4% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise
in full of the remaining share options would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 69,602,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital
of approximately HK$6,960,000 and share premium of approximately HK$22,751,000 (before issue
expenses).

The 5,668,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the issue of 5,668,000 ordinary shares
of the Company, as further detailed in note 28 to the financial statements.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had 64,602,000 share options

outstanding under the scheme, which represented approximately 4.1% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.
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HERZAARATEEITIRMLAL.4% R D TR B RA & #HEE
BATESR T 2B - BB R R E1T74969,602,0000% 58 51 & 38
BRAR 1 - AR KR AR 19 52 (B 15 53 RIIIE I 4075 %5 6,960,0007T K 4978 1
22,751,0007C (RINBREEFTH ) ©
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30. RESERVES 30. f#f#&
(@) Group (a) £
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior years are REER F—FEAEBRFERETEE 2 BEE 2R T KR
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial statements. RZGERREHMENA -
The amounts of goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 R —FHRMS T EEAERIFE3055 51 E U EH B2 a FrE
in 2001, remaining in the consolidated capital reserve and consolidated retained profits amounted to EMRZZEZENFRNA=TBINERGE BN REERGERE
HK$4,987,000 and HK$20,982,000, respectively, as at 30 June 2009. m AR 2 RS RS B A5 14,987,0007T K& #20,982,0007T °
(b) Company (b) AF]
Share Share Proposed
premium  Contributed option Retained final
Notes account surplus reserve profits dividend Total
in HK$ thousand 5% IR 13 % 18 AR BB BREREE REEF FRARBRE #E BT T
At 1 July 2008 4,678 157,616 6,808 156 15,882 185,140 RZZEZENFLH—H
Profit for the year = = = 31,927 = 31,927 F N A
Issue of shares 28 828 = (402) = - 426 BTG
Equity-settled share option arrangements 29 = = 3,171 = - 3,171 Tém, G E B EL
Final 2008 dividend declared - - - - (15,882) (15,882) ER-ZETNFRARE
Interim 2009 dividend 12 - - - (15,939) - (15,939) —Tfﬂiﬂhﬁimg
Proposed final 2009 dividend 12 = = = (15,939) 15,939 - BKZZETNFERARKRE
At 30 June 2009 5,506* 157,616* 9,577* 205* 15,939 188,843 RZZEZNFESH=1TH
At 1 July 2007 2,682 157,616 1,784 6,260 = 168,342 RZZTZE+F+A—H
Profit for the year - - - 9,778 - 9,778 F N A
Issue of shares 28 1,996 - (971) = - 1,025 BTG
Equity-settled share option arrangements 29 = = 5,995 = - 5,995 a4 a#ﬁﬁﬁxﬁé??ﬁ
Proposed final 2008 dividend 12 = = (15,882) 15,882 - BK—ZZETN\FRARKRE
At 30 June 2008 4,678*  157,616* 6,808* 156* 15,882 185,140 R-EENFANA=1H

*  These reserve amounts comprise the reserve of HK$172,904,000 (2008: HK$169,258,000) in the balance
sheet.

*

Etﬁfu%ﬁﬁﬁlﬁfﬂﬁﬁ‘ REEBBRAZFEEE172,904,000T (ZFEN

: 7 1#169,258,0007T) °
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30. RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company originally represented the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries and
the aggregate net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition, at the time of the
Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1993. Under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, the Company may make distributions to its shareholders out of the contributed
surplus.

The share option reserve of the Group and the Company comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payment transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either be transferred
to the share premium account when the related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained
profits should the related options expire or be forfeited.

31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
Group
(a) As lessor

The Group sub-leases certain of its retail properties under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from four to six years. The terms of the leases also require the tenants
to pay security deposits.

30. f#fE (&)

31.

(b) 7 (&)
ARRZHABRBRIDR—NAN=FRRARBKM LWAMELSE
EEAR AR RRMHEB A RS EITRAMET 2RO E
B BRKRBZHEARNKEBRENEEFEEM I ZRE R
BERE-NAN—FREDE  AABAKHMARBRDIRTER
B o

AEERARNR . BREFREEERDERNRITERBREZ

NHE - FEHNMERER T2 4B AR XN RIBZ R 5
SEIBRA - AEFAMBRAEREREETESERERND

m B - AR B B R A R E R A o

REHEZZH

£H

(a) FERHAA
AEEGEKEHEZLHT  nHEETEEDE  #E2H8
HRMUEARNFAE - ZEOZ ERTPRERTRANRERS -
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At 30 June 2009, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable RZZEZNFANAZ+H AEEEHEBAFPRIT 2 TAIBEZ
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows: KEHET  BEAREHSRKEREENIIHBEOT
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —ZEThEF ZTENF BT T
Within one year 617 272 R—FR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 1,820 905 RE_FEFRF  BHEEEMF
2,437 1,177
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31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
(b) As lessee
The Group leases certain of its offices, retail outlets and warehouse properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to eleven years.

At 30 June 2009, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& R &R Kzt

30June 2009 —EENFRA=1+H

31. KEMHE 2 25 ()
(b) ERAEBA

AEBELEHREZLHT HABETHAE TEEHLE
BYE - ZEMEBREZHIR—FET—FIF -

RZZFZFAFAA=ZTH  AEEEFATREQLEZHET -
BRKEHEEMNREERIHALLT

2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EERE —EENF BT T
Within one year 340,451 354,787 R—F RN
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 346,496 378,605 REZFEFRFT  BEEERSE
After five years 37,445 15,155 hFi%
724,392 748,547

The operating lease rentals of certain retail outlets are based solely on the sales of those outlets. In the
opinion of the directors, as the future sales of those retail outlets could not be accurately estimated,
the relevant rental commitments have not been included above.

At the balance sheet date, the Company did not have any future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases.

ETEEEMZREHEHCERZEEMZHERIE - &
ERL ARBAERGAZETEEHBERZEER B
LW EBEBBHESASE -

REER - ARBENAHELLHEET Y EEFBRKE
HERK -
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32. COMMITMENTS
Group

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 31(b) above, the Group had the following

commitments at the balance sheet date:

32. &iE
£5
B E BT EE31(b) st 2 A AR S RIESN - AEBENEE R 2 RIS
M

Capital commitments B A RIE
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —ZETAEF T )N\F BT T
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI B R B
Leasehold improvements 330 99 %ﬁ%%% £
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 11 3 @ﬁl\ HEBERPHAERME
Computer software 2,017 1,228 i B4
2,358 1,330
Authorised, but not provided for: OB AREE
Leasehold improvements = 198 %HE%%%%W
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment - 116 f?ﬁﬁ[\ = PNE YN
Computer software 207 55 BEEIES
207 369

At the balance sheet date, the Company did not have any significant commitments.

ANNUAL REPORT 2008/09

il
1ot

REER » RRBWEEFMERAMSE -
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. HAREE
Group |
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —ETAE —ZET)N\EF BETT
Bank guarantees given in lieu of utility and REKERERBYREZS 2
property rental deposits 6,848 5,790 RITER

34.

The Company has given guarantees in favour of banks to the extent of HK$508,711,000 (2008:
HK$449,500,000) in respect of banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries. These facilities were
utilised to the extent of HK$89,428,000 (2008: HK$13,738,000).

LITIGATION

(@

A High Court action (the "WDC Action”), which commenced on 10 June 1998, was brought
against J & R Bossini Trading Limited (“Bossini Trading”), a subsidiary of the Company, by Weiland
Development Company Limited (“WDC"), for breach of a lease (the “Lease”) relating to a property
used by Bossini Trading as a warehouse for a minimum amount of approximately HK$7,248,000.
Bossini Trading is defending the WDC Action and had counter-claimed against WDC for a declaration
that the Lease was lawfully terminated. As at the date of this report, the directors believe that it is
not practicable to estimate the possible extent of the liability of Bossini Trading, if any, in respect of
this action. However, the directors are of the opinion that the claim is unlikely to succeed based on
the merits of the case and therefore, the directors consider that no material liability is likely to result
therefrom.

Two High Court actions (the “Actions”), which both commenced on 24 July 1998, were brought
against Bossini Trading by Sano Screen Manufacturing Limited and Tri-Star Fabric Printing Works
Limited (collectively called the “Plaintiffs”), for breach of leases relating to properties used by Bossini
Trading as warehouses. Judgements in respect of the Actions were awarded in favour of the Plaintiffs
against Bossini Trading on 16 June 2000 for an amount not exceeding HK$2,467,000, together with
interest thereon from the date of the said judgements to the date of payment at the judgement rate,
and the costs of the Actions. As at the date of this report, no payment has been made by Bossini
Trading.

34,

ARBMETHBERARFEL ZRITEECRBITIELEE
508,711,0007T (=== )\ £ : #449,500,0007T) 2 1R - EEH
Z =B %8 575%89,428,0007T (ZZFF )\ F : #¥13,738,0007T) °

EiEA
(@) Weiland Development Company Limited ([WDC |) %A — L L\ 4
NATH BARFZHMBAREMEZ S ERAR ([ 25
B DERMBEER 2MERLY ZIHBL))  mEMEES
RE—ESRREFR ((WDCHRL) @ REZFERFELHSE
7,248,0007T ° R HE B 5 IR [E WD CAFFAE B fu s KX [AWDC
RIERFD - EFRERBLIEZBLE EELRIE - RAREH
H - E5HEZEGAEMEE Z AR FRRE ZEER
E(IA) WAAIAT o AT - BLAFAREZ KR - EFRAE
BREZBFES TR  HWEMEES TeEMAREERS
£
(b) Sano Screen Manufacturing Limited &2 Tri-Star Fabric Printing Works
Limited (B RFADR—NNANFELA =TT EFEMEE
ES5ERMEBIEER ZWHERL  MEMEE SR EMIER
REFD(ZEIFRD  EERZZTZEZF AT SBHZE
FRHRETERF AL - EMEZE S ERERBTERBE
2,467,000 2 FIE CER BEARA B RELNZERB 2B IEH
MBEBEANEFGEZANE) REE - RAREHE - &EE
5 MRS ZEHIA -
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34. LITIGATION (continued)

A winding-up order was made against Bossini Trading on 28 January 2002. As the directors were aware,
with a winding-up order had been made against Bossini Trading, WDC would require leave of the courts
to continue the WDC Action and such leave had not been obtained.

With respect to the Actions, the Plaintiffs were ranked as unsecured creditors in the event of any
distribution of assets upon the winding-up of Bossini Trading.

As Bossini Trading had minimal assets and neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had provided
any guarantees or sureties in respect of the liabilities of Bossini Trading, the directors consider that there
would be no significant adverse impact on the financial position of the Group as a result of any action taken
by the Plaintiffs to enforce the judgements against Bossini Trading or any unfavourable judgement being
made against Bossini Trading upon leave of the courts being granted to WDC to continue the WDC Action.
On 25 August 2008, the Court ordered that Bossini Trading be dissolved from that date. In the opinion of
the legal advisor of Bossini Trading, the claim of the WDC Action should be considered as concluded upon
dissolution of Bossini Trading on 25 August 2008 as no further step in the claim could be taken against
Bossini Trading.
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Group

(@) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group
had the following material transactions with related parties during the year:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& R &R Kzt
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5. BEALRS
£H

(a)

BRUMBHRAFL 2 X B REHRI  REBRFRNEBEALT
BTZERRZRZWMT

(b)

Notes 2009 2008
in HK$ thousand Mt 5E ZEZhF —EENF BT T
Rental paid for warehouse premises (i) 1,403 1,389 BERES
Rental paid for office premises (i) 4,212 5,820 MAEHE
Purchases of garments (ii) 236,754 194,406 BEMKK
Notes: BT

@i

(ii)

The rentals were paid to Bright City International Limited (“Bright City”) and were determined by reference
to open market rents at the inception of the tenancy agreements. Certain directors of Bright City, who have
beneficial equity interests therein, are relatives of Mr. LAW Ka Sing, a director during the year and substantial
shareholder of the Company. As the rentals are settled monthly, the Group had no outstanding rental payable
to Bright City as at 30 June 2009 (2008: Nil).

During the year, garments with amount totalling HK$236,754,000 (2008: HK$194,406,000) were purchased
from certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of Laws International Group Limited (“Laws International”).
The purchases were determined by reference to the prevailing market prices. Certain directors of Laws
International, who have beneficial equity interests therein, are relatives of Mr. LAW Ka Sing, a director during
the year and substantial shareholder of the Company. The balance owing to these suppliers as at 30 June 2009
was HK$9,206,000 (2008: HK$4,820,000).

The related party transactions in notes (i) and (ii) above also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Outstanding balances with related parties
Details of the Group’s trade balances with related companies as at the balance sheet date are included
in note 23 to the financial statements.

(b)

() BEHHENTERRBEARAR (DEWR]) - H2REOERFZ
ARMEREMEE  ER L ETHEESRA RS EEIA
ARANFRAZEERIZRRERELAEZHRE -AREEDE
A% NEBR-ZZAFA=ZTR(ZZETNF : ) U E
ENERZ AXMEE ©

iy &R ARFAAETREREREEARAR (REEE]) 2EHB
AR E G H5%236,754,0007T (ZZZ\F : #%194,406,000
TO) 2K o RIEN2BER s HEER - BERERZETHEE
HBRAERS T EEDNARARERNZEESHR T ERRERELEE
ZEBE R ETAEANA=STEMRZEHEE ZBEABE
9,206,0007T (ZZZ )\ 4 : #%4,820,0007T) °

S Y i) B (i) 2 A
ZRHERERS -

AERZIER ETHRRIE14ARFTE

BEHRE A T 2 R EERE
REER  AEBEEED
5F23 °

= i

& R
A2 B S ESRFBEN T R KM
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

35. AEANERF (&)
(0 AEWMEEEEAS 2MHE

2008
in HK$ thousand —EEhE ZEENF BT T
Short term employee benefits 16,728 EHIEB R
Performance related bonuses 1,660 ER R IR ARR 2 TEAL
Post-employment benefits 584 BEE 2 13 T
Equity-settled share option expense 5,398 R EERER X
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 24,370 SNTEEBTEAB ZAERE

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial statements.

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are

as follows:

Group
Financial assets — 2009

Loans and receivables

BEEMWE 2 HAFBE NI IEREMES -
36. 2R ITEYSE
REEH SR TAREREDT :

L]
CREE - —BZTNFE

in HK$ thousand B R EWER BT T
Deposits paid 96,901 [EENE &
Debtors 55,143 JE W AR 3K
Bills receivable 9,783 FE W =R
Financial assets included in prepayments and other receivables (note 20) 18,794 B AT ATET 5038 R H Ath fE W BR 18 2 & Bl & B (MT5E20)
Pledged bank deposits 1,486 BEIPRITER
Cash and cash equivalents 340,774 ReMBEeFEIEE
522,881
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

Financial liabilities — 2009

36. T A E (&)

EHEE - —FTAF

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& R &R Kzt

30June 2009 —EENFRA=1+H

Financial liabilities Financial
at fair value liabilities at
through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
RAFERBRE TR 8 AR A
in HK$ thousand JEzeMAE JEZLRmERE At BT T
Financial liabilities included in trade creditors, EEF AR - HEAbFERFIE R
other payables and accruals (note 22) = 74,788 74,788 JEFTRRIE 2 @ M B & (5E22)
Bills payable = 4,837 4,837 e %
Due to related companies = 9,206 9,206 FE TR E A | IR
Derivative financial instruments 3,265 = 3,265 EemIA
Interest-bearing bank borrowings = 77,621 77,621 FTERITER
3,265 166,452 169,717
Financial assets — 2008 TREE - —ZBZN\F
Loans and receivables
in HK$ thousand &R B AR ok e
Deposits paid 94,664 Effike
Debtors 62,519 & 45 BR X
Bills receivable 4,923 A E T
Financial assets included in prepayments and other receivables (note 20) 15,340 B At ATERT RIE K H fth fE W BRIE 2 & Bt & & (M95120)
Pledged bank deposits 1,615 BEBRITER
Cash and cash equivalents 308,688 RekReFEEE
487,749

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS

LIMITED 2MEREREEEERAR

149



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& 3R &k i &t

30June 2009 —EZNFNA=1H

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 36. RE T A5 ()
Financial liabilities - 2008 SEEE - —FTN\F
Financial liabilities Financial
at fair value liabilities at
through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BAFEREBZE 2 88 88 B AR
in HK$ thousand JIRzemaE JE2emasE “st BETIT
Financial liabilities included in trade creditors, EffABMER EMEAZRIER
other payables and accruals (note 22) = 77,654 77,654 EErERIBEz @B A E (522)
Bills payable - 7,836 7,836 FEf iR
Due to related companies = 4,820 4,820 FE B E R R 5B
Derivative financial instruments 4,382 = 4,382 PTESMT A
4,382 90,310 94,692
Company AT
Financial assets SREE

Loans and receivables

BRRERERR
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EEREFE —TENF BETIT
Due from subsidiaries 207,803 201,310 JE W BT BB A B kIR
Cash and cash equivalents 442 1,173 ReMkBEeFEIEE
208,245 202,483
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36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& R &R Kzt

30June 2009 —EENFRA=1+H

36. SRITES¥E(E)

37.

Financial liabilities il =
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
REBERRIIEZSHEE
2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EZNE —ZTTNF BT T
Financial liabilities included in other payables BB A E M FE < 3B R FE R R IR
and accruals (note 22) 265 234 ZemaE(fE22)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise cash and bank balances and
time deposits, bills payable and interest-bearing bank borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as debtors, deposits paid, and trade creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including principally forward currency contracts. The
purpose is to manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out in note
2.4 to the financial statements.

37. K EREEBEEREE
AEBEZETESRMT A (TTEERGBRIN BIER S UARBITEBRE
HER BNEERASBRTER ZEemMITAZFZENAE
SESEAEEKENT - ASBEETRAHEMEREERAE
INEMERSK - B IRE MEMRFG  HEEREELEEK -

AEENFUZEANER S  TE2REEHERKER  HENARE
BRASEEBMEE 2 ERRARKEERIR -

AEESRTAZIZRBRATNXAR INERR  FERR LR

BESRAR -EEZRRANEBEEEFBRER 2B - XN
T AEBEERTEER ST BHRBR U BRKRME24 -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk
Group

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-

bearing bank borrowings during the year with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings) and the Group’s equity.

37. MR EE B ZERBUER (&)

AR AR
]

AREBAZ TSN E RS 2 AR T ZENAEEFAZFBH X

BIRITER -

TRETEEMAZARTENERT  MEZ2AEF
SEBRBADEN B R RERD

) Re 75 55 [ HE mn O SRR NE o

Decrease Increase
Increase in in profit before Decrease in in profit before
basis points tax/equity* basis points tax/equity*
E 22 BRBLADER], R D R BRBUATIE T HEZR 1 0+
2009 2008 2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EEhEF —TTN\F —EEhEF —TTN\F BT T
100 776 - 100 776 -

*  Excluding retained profits

Foreign currency risk
Group

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from the sales and the investments
in foreign operations in currencies other than the United States dollar and the Hong Kong dollar.
Approximately 43% (2008: 44%) of the Group's sales are denominated in currencies other than the United
States dollar and the Hong Kong dollar. It is the Group’s policy to enter into forward currency contracts to
mitigate foreign exchange risk arising from material transactions denominated in currencies other than the

United States dollar and the Hong Kong dollar.

At 30 June 2009, the Group had forward currency contracts with an aggregate nominal amount of HK$83
million (2008: HK$97 million) to manage its foreign currency risk in Singapore dollar and Taiwan dollar.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the balance sheet date to a reasonably possible change
in the Renminbi, Singapore dollar, Taiwan dollar and Malaysian Ringgit exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and equity (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities).

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& 3R &R i &t

37.

30June 2009 —EENFRA=1+H

Bt % B B 3 B AR R BOR ()

S R B ()

TRETEEMATBRRAZNERT - AR - FHET 8%
MEBERZ QBB BN EE B HARBERBATGEN R
G (HREREERABZATEZD) -

Increase in Increase/(decrease) in Decrease in Increase/(decrease) in
exchange rate profit before tax/equity* exchange rate profit before tax/equity*
BB ATRR, BRBERTRR
=M M R * B R 2 LM, CRD) *
2009 2008 2009 2008
in HK$ thousand % —ZEEhE —ZET)N\F % —EZhEF —EENF BETIT
Investments denominated A3 B8 ETHE R 8
in and investments linked TFI| & 5 8
to currency of: ZE
Renminbi 5 1,690 2,761 5 (1,690) (2,761) AR
Singapore dollar 5 890 (976) 5 (890) 976 s ot
Taiwan dollar 5 269 1,294 5 (269) (1,294) =
Malaysian ringgit 5 972 256 5 (972) (256) 5k

*  Excluding retained profits

Credit risk

The Group trades primarily in cash and major credit cards, and it is the Group’s policy to trade on credit
terms with recognised and creditworthy third parties only. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The Group places cash and cash equivalents with reputable banks to minimise the credit risk thereof.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. Concentrations of credit risk are managed
by customer/counterparty and by geographical region. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk
within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from debtors are disclosed
in note 18 to the financial statements.

* D EIERE A

EERER

AEEZEHETBZUREREABIN - AEEZBRBELERR
MEBRIFZE=ZTTETRS - WH - REE S T ERBURIRK
rEER - MASEPTAR 2 ZIRERRAR -

AEERKReMREFERAFHRNEERIFZRT  UBEER
BB E RIK

AEEEMEREECFERR PKQ”T?EZE’E? ﬁﬁEKZH

MERZETAZERE ST EERBRERETR XHHFTE
Nizim o - %lWIﬁiﬁ‘iﬂPﬁﬁﬂﬁA

FRAEEMEAERBBRKERZEERKR 2 EZS(LBEE N
SRR 18I EE -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., debtors) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility by keeping
adequate credit facilities from banks. The Group had credit facilities from banks of HK$407 million and

approximately HK$89.4 million was utilised as at 30 June 2009.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based on the contractual

37. MR EE B ZERBUER (&)

REBES @R
AEENAREERDRE TAERERREAR ZTAHES
RTAMSREE (WMEKER) WEHAHERENSEEENRE

ik
AEEZBRAEREZHBETREARTREAMEER ZER
EMERGTFE R-_FTAFANA=1TH  AEENFZRTE
ERERERATEL  ERNBBUTELEDA -

REEH  AEBERETHNEREBENRZEREESHBE R

undiscounted payments, was as follows: o
Group =3
2009 —EENF
Less than

On demand 1 year Total
in HK$ thousand REREF DPR—F st BT
Financial liabilities included in trade creditors, Bt ARMERE - Etb g RIE

other payables and accruals (note 22) 31,684 43,104 74,788 K EFTARIE 2 @ A & (M322)
Bills payable = 4,837 4,837 AN
Due to related companies 1,332 7,874 9,206 FET R E A | 5UIE
Derivative financial instruments = 3,265 3,265 PTEemT A
Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 78,703 78,703 T RIRITER
33,016 137,783 170,799
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 37. MK REBREE B ZERBUEK (&)
2008 —BENF
Less than
On demand 1 year Total
in HK$ thousand RE KK DPR—F Kby BT T
Financial liabilities included in trade creditors, B ET AR BRIR - H At FER IR
other payables and accruals (note 22) 38,097 39,557 77,654 REFTREBE €M AaE ([5E22)
Bills payable = 7,836 7,836 JEA %
Due to related companies 3,030 1,790 4,820 FET R & A | IR
Derivative financial instruments = 4,382 4,382 PTESRT A
41,127 53,565 94,692
Company A
2009 —BENF
Less than
1 year
in HK$ thousand DPR—F BT T
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals (note 22) 265 EEt AR M R RRIE K FE AT BRI 2 £ B B J (95E22)
2008 —EBENF
Less than
1 year
in HK$ thousand DR—F BT T
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals (note 22) 234 EEt AE M R RRIE K FE AT RRIE 2 £ B B J (95E22)
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 37.

Capital management

Group

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the two years ended 30 June 2008 and 2009.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio calculated on the basis of interest-bearing bank
borrowings over total equity. The Group targets to maintain a gearing ratio of 0.7 or below.

The gearing ratio is regularly reviewed by senior management. The gearing ratios as at the balance sheet
dates were as follows:

B mE b EE B R KRB ()

EXERE

]

AEEEAEENEERR  AERASBEAGKERRNE
BARRENEALR  UFHHERERE  FREANBRES -

AEERBQEBEANES EREENEBALEHRE - BER
HABEAERE  AKETRERARFRERS  ARREKEEAR
HBETHR - BE_TZN\FR-_ZTAFRNA=1THIEMEF
B YEFEREREANBR BRI

AEERAEEAGBLERERESRN  StEEERF BRITER
BrgEs -  ARBEZERREREEABRIERROTHIAT

SREEETHEMNEEEALE -NEEENEEES B EN
T

2009 2008
in HK$ thousand —EZhF —ZEE)N\F BT T
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 77,621 - FFEIRITER
Total equity 672,760 655,042 B
Gearing ratio 0.12 - BEBERLX
38. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 38. iz 2L &

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
22 October 2009.
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